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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Shareholders of Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial &atements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated dinhrstatements of Hellenic Petroleum S.A. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “@Gr) which comprise the consolidated statemenirafricial
position as of 31 December 2015 and the consotidstiEement of comprehensive income, statemertiarfges

in equity and cash flow statement for the year theded and a summary of significant accountingcpesdiand
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Fiancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation amgfesentation of these consolidated financetieshents in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards, as adopted by the European Union, angufudr
internal control as management determines is naoe$s enable the preparation of separate and tdased
financial statements that are free from materiastatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on odit. e
conducted our audit in accordance with Internali@tandards on Auditing. Those standards requia¢ we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and penfthe audit to obtain reasonable assurance abloeitier
the consolidated financial statements are free fraterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairdia evidence about the amounts and disclosurahan
consolidated financial statements. The proceduedscted depend on the auditor's judgment, includire
assessment of the risks of material misstatemethteoéonsolidated financial statements, whethertddieaud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the authtasiders internal control relevant to the efgifyreparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated finansi@tements in order to design audit procedures aha
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverdsthe
entity's internal control. An audit also includeskiating the appropriateness of accounting pdicised and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates madehbggement, as well as evaluating the overall ptatsen
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamsdfficient and appropriate to provide a basrsour audit
opinion.

i PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, 268 Kifissias Avenue, 15232 Halandri, Greece
T: +30 210 6874400, F: +30 210 6874444, www.pwc.gr

260 Kifissias Avenue & Kodrou Str., 15232 Halandri, T: +30 210 6874400, F:+30 210 6874444
17 Ethnikis Antistassis Str., 55134 Thessaloniki, T: +30 2310 488880, F: +30 2310 459487
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagaresent fairly, in all material respects, theficial position
of the Group as at 31 December 31 and its finamqméaformance and cash flows for the year then erned
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards, as adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
a) Included in the Board of Directors’ Report is thermorate governance statement that contains the

information that is required by paragraph 3d ofc&t43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

b) We verified the conformity and consistency of theormation given in the Board of Directors’ repaith
the accompanying consolidated financial statemantgccordance with the requirements of articles 43a
(par.3a), 108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

Athens, 25 February 2016

Certified Auditor - Accountant

_a

pwec

PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A. Karstas Michalatos
Certified Auditors — Accountants SOEL Reg.N7701
268, Kifissias Avenue

152 32 Halandri

SOEL Reg. No 113

i PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, 268 Kifissias Avenue, 15232 Halandri, Greece
T: +30 210 6874400, F: +30 210 6874444, www.pwc.gr

260 Kifissias Avenue & Kodrou Str., 15232 Halandri, T: +30 210 6874400, F:+30 210 6874444
17 Ethnikis Antistassis Str., 55134 Thessaloniki, T: +30 2310 488880, F: +30 2310 459487
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Consolidated statement of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current asset

Property, plant and equipm:

Intangible asse

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Deferred income tax ass

Available-for-sale financial ass:

Loans, advances and long term as

Current asset:

Inventorie:

Trade and other receivab

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted

Total assets

EQUITY

Share capiti

Reserves

Retained Earnings

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of th@arent

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non- current liabilities

Borrowings

Deferred income tax liabilitie
Retirement benefit obligatio
Provisions for other liabilities and char
Other long term liabilitie

Current liabilities

Trade and other payab
Derivative financial instrumer
Current income tax liabilitie
Borrowings

Dividends payab

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The notes on pages 11 to 65 are an integral painesé consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements were apprby the board on 25 February 2016.

E. Tsotsoros G.Stergioulis

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

i€€hrinancial Officer

Board Member

As at

Note 31 December 201 31 December 201
6 3.385.27I 3.398.17!
7 117.06: 131.97¢
8 678.63" 682.42!
17 239.53¢ 224.78¢
3 52z 1.547
9 85.02: 86.69¢
4.506.05; 4.525.60!
10 662.02! 637.61:
11 752.14: 708.22°
12 2.108.36. 1.847.84.
3.522.53: 3.193.68:

8.028.583 7.719.288
13 1.020.08. 1.020.08.
14 443.72¢ 435.01:

220.506 163.048

1.684.316 1.618.142
105.95: 110.40:
1.790.27! 1.728.54
16 1.597.95. 1.811.99!
17 45.287 40.95:¢
18 95.36: 92.72¢
19 6.40¢ 6.22¢
20 22.67¢ 21.86:
1.767.68: 1.973.76.
15 2.795.37: 2.679.19!
21 34.81¢ 60.08"
6.29( 34.90:
16 1.633.03: 1.177.64!
1.11¢ 65.14¢
4.470.63: 4.016.98.
6.238.31: 5.990.74.

8.028.583 7.719.288
A. Shiamishis S. Papiadou

Accounting Director
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year endet
Note 31 December 201 31 December 201

Sale: 7.302.939 9.478.444
Cost of sales (6.608.357) (9.333.608)
Gross profit 694.582 144.836
Selling and distribution expen: (339.901 (323.305
Administrative expens (118.328 (116.947
Exploration and development exper 23 (536, (4.266
Other operating (expenses) / income- net 24 9.427 10.770
Operating profit / (loss) 245.244 (288.912)
Finance (expenses) / income- 25 (201.045 (215.030
Currency exchange gains / (losses) 26 (26.753) (9.198)
Share of profit of investments in associates antt j@nture 8 21.51¢ 28.24¢
Profit / (loss) before income tax 38.964 (484.895)
Income tax (expense) / cre 27 6.06° 116.30!
Profit / (loss) for the year 45.027 (368.590)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengiam: 1.61¢ (6.234
1.615 (6.234)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to prifor loss:
Fair value gains / (losses) on available-for-selarfcial assets (255) 375
Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow he 14 (4.802 (42.289
Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges throaghpecehensivi
income 14 24.54¢ (3.586
Currency translation differences and other movement (603) 185
18.888 (45.315)
Other Comprehensive (loss) / income for the year at of tax 20.503 (51.549)
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the ye 65.53( (420.139
Profit / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the pare 46.68¢ (365.292
Non-controlling interests (1.657) (3.298)
45.027 (368.590
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the pare 67.23¢ (416.881
Non-controlling interests (1.709) (3.258)
65.53( (420.139

Basic and diluted earnings per shart
(expressed in Euro per share) 28 0,15 (1,20)

The notes on pages 11 to 65 are an integral painese consolidated financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Balance at 1 January 2014

Fair value gains / (losses) on available-for-salarfcial assets

Currency translation differences and other movement

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengiams

Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow hedges

Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges throeghpcehensive income

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Share based payments

Distribution of tax-free reserves
Transfer of tax on distributed reserves
Dividends to non-controlling interests

Balance at 31 December 2014

Fair value gains / (losses) on available-for-salerfcial assets

Currency translation differences and other movesent

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengiams

Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow hedges

Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges throeghpcehensive income

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Share based payments

Transfers from Reserves to Retained Earnings
Expenses relating to share capital increase ofdiabg
Tax on intra-group dividends relating to 2014
Dividends to non-controlling interests

Balance at 31 December 2015

Attributable to owners of the Parent

Non-
Share Retained controlling Total
Note Capital  Reserves Earnings Total Interest  Equity
1.020.081 566.103 512.771 2.098.955 115.511 2.214.466
14 - 330 - 330 45 375
14 - 135 - 135 50 185
14 - (6.179) - (6.179) (55) (6.234)
14 - (42.289) - (42.289) - (42.289)
14 - (3.586) - (3.586) (3.586)
- (51.589) - (51.589) 40 (51.549)
- - (365.292)  (365.292) (3.298)  (368.590)
- (51.589) (365.292) (416.881) (3.258) (420.139)
13 - (24) 275 251 - 251
- (64.376) 193 (64.183) (22) (64.205)
- (15.101) 15.101 - - -
- - - - (1.827) (1.827)
1.020.081 435.013 163.048 1.618.142 110.404 1.728.546
14 - (178) - (178) 77) (255)
14 - (632) - (632) 29 (603)
14 - 1.619 - 1.619 4) 1.615
14 - (4.802) - (4.802) - (4.802)
14 - 24.548 - 24.548 - 24.548
- 20.555 - 20.555 (52) 20.503
- - 46.684 46.684 (1.657) 45.027
- 20.555 46.684 67.239 (1.709) 65.530
13 - (2.893) 2.893 -
14 - (8.946) 8.946 - - -
- - (772) (772) - (772)
- - (293) (293) - (293)
- - - - (2.741) (2.741)
1.020.081 443.729 220.506 1.684.316 105.954 1.790.270

The notes on pages 11 to 65 are an integral painesé consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended
Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 30 494.359 875.532
Income tax paid (34.648) (22.750)
Net cash generated from / (used in) used in operag activities 459.711 852.782
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment & intalegassets (165.253) (135.880)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egeig & intangible assets 828 4981
Expenses paid relating to share capital increaseludidiary (772) -
Grants received 1.182 -
Interest received 8.797 8.841
Dividends received 8 18.289 39.221
Participation in share capital (increase)/ decredsessociates 8 18 (76)
Proceeds from disposal of available for sale firrassets 771 -
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing actties (136.140) (82.913)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (200.793) (196.886)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company (64.004) (363)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2.770) (1.827)
Proceeds from borrowings 420.924 1.111.611
Repayments of borrowings (226.690) (827.781)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing actities (73.333) 84.754
Net (decrease) / increase in cash, cash equivaleatsl restricted cash 250.238 854.623
Cash,cash equivalents and restricted cash at the ¢iening of the year 12 1.847.842 959.602
Exchange gains / (losses) on cash, cash equivaledteestricted cash 10.284 33.617
Net (decrease) / increase in cash, cash equivaledtsestricted cash 250.238 854.623
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at enflthe year 12 2.108.364 1.847.842

The notes on pages 11 to 65 are an integral painesé consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 General information

Hellenic Petroleum and its subsidiaries (togethdeltenic Petroleum” or the “Group”) operate in taeergy
sector predominantly in Greece, South Eastern Eurnpd the East Mediterranean. The Group’s activitie
include refining and marketing of oil products, guction and marketing of petrochemical products and
exploration for hydrocarbons. The Group also presiéngineering services. Through its investmenBERA
and Elpedison, the Group also operates in the sedtmatural gas and in the production and tradifg
electricity power.

The parent Company is incorporated in Greece aadathiress of its registered office i$ @himarras Str.,
Marousi. The shares of the Company are listed emAthens Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exghan
through GDRs.

The financial statements and the consolidated €iishistatements of Hellenic Petroleum S.A. for year ended
31 December 2015 were authorised for issue by tedBof Directors on 25 February 2016. The shadzhsl
of the Company have the power to amend the finhataéements after their issuance.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in theparation of these consolidated financial statesarg set out
below. These policies have been consistently agppdieall the years presented unless otherwisedstate

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Hell@gtroleum S.A. and its subsidiaries for the yeated 31
December 2015 have been prepared in accordancelntémational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting StandardarBq“IASB”), as adopted by the European Union (*EU
and present the financial position, results of apens and cash flows of the Group on a going canbasis. In
this respect Management has concluded that (a)gtlieg concern basis of preparation of the accoisits
appropriate, and (b) all assets and liabilitieshef Group are appropriately presented in accordavitte the
Group’s accounting policies.

The consolidated financial statements have bequapee on a historical cost basis, except for theviing:

e Available-for-sale financial assets, financial @assand financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) — measured at fair value.
e Defined benefit pension plans — plan assets medsarair value.

The preparation of financial statements, in acaacdawith IFRS, requires the use of certain critmedounting
estimates. It also requires management to exeitisgudgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a highegrde of judgment or complexity, or areas wherarapsions
and estimates are significant to the consolidatethtial statements are disclosed in Note 4 “Giitaccounting
estimates and judgements”. These estimates arel lbasemanagement’s best knowledge of current evaamds
actions; actual results ultimately may differ fréinose estimates.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(11) / (65)
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2.1.1 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations

(&) New and amended standards adopted by the Group.

The Group has applied the following standards andralments for the first time for the annual repariperiod
commencing 1 January 2015:

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013 (effective fouahperiods beginning on or after 1 January 2015):

The amendments set out below describe the key elsaagthree IFRSs following the publication of
the results of the IASB’s 2011-13 cycle of the adrimprovements project.

— IFRS 3 “Business combinationsThis amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 does not apiptpe
accounting for the formation of any joint arrangemender IFRS 11 in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

— IFRS 13 “Fair value measurementThe amendment clarifies that the portfolio excapfio
IFRS 13 applies to all contracts (including norafigial contracts) within the scope of IAS
39/IFRS 9.

— |AS 40 “Investment property'The standard is amended to clarify that IAS 40 I&RIS 3 are
not mutually exclusive.

The adoption of these amendments does not havicigm impact for the Group.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted.

Certain new standards, amendments to standardsi@ngretations have been issued that are not nbarydfmr
periods beginning during the current financial y&dre Group’s evaluation of the effect of these mtandards,
amendments to standards and interpretations usételow.

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 (effective faruahperiods beginning on or after 1 February

2015):

The amendments set out below describe the key elsangsix IFRSs following the publication of the
results of the IASB’s 2010-12 cycle of the annuapiovements project. The Group is currently
evaluating the impact the amendments will have®financial statements.

— IFRS 2 “Share-based paymentThe amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vegti
condition’ and separately defines ‘performance @md and ‘service condition’.

— IFRS 3 “Business combinations"The amendment clarifies that an obligation to pay
contingent consideration which meets the definitiba financial instrument is classified as a
financial liability or as equity, on the basis difiet definitions in IAS 32 “Financial
instruments: Presentation”. It also clarifies thlktnon-equity contingent consideration, both
financial and non-financial, is measured at falueahrough profit or loss.

— IFRS 8 “Operating segmentsThe amendment requires disclosure of the judgnmeatie by
management in aggregating operating segments.

— IFRS 13 “Fair value measurementThe amendment clarifies that the standard does not
remove the ability to measure short-term receivabled payables at invoice amounts in cases
where the impact of not discounting is immaterial.

— |AS 16 “Property, plant and equipmen#indIAS 38 “Intangible assets"Both standards are
amended to clarify how the gross carrying amourt #re accumulated depreciation are
treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.
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— |AS 24 “Related party disclosuresThe standard is amended to include, as a related, @n
entity that provides key management personnel ges\p the reporting entity or to the parent
of the reporting entity.

e |AS 19R (Amendment) “Employee Benefits” (effecfoveannual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2015).These narrow scope amendments apply to contrimitfioom employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans and simplify tleecanting for contributions that are independent of
the number of years of employee service, for exameimployee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. The adomf the amendment does not have significant
impact for the Group.

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 (effective foruahperiods beginning on or after 1 January
2016):

The amendments set out below describe the key elsandour IFRSs.

— IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and distaed operations”.The amendment
clarifies that, when an asset (or disposal grosipgclassified from ‘held for sale’ to ‘held for
distribution’, or vice versa, this does not congéta change to a plan of sale or distribution,
and does not have to be accounted for as such.

— IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: DisclosuresThe amendment adds specific guidance to help
management determine whether the terms of an amaegt to service a financial asset which
has been transferred constitute continuing invoksmmand clarifies that the additional
disclosure required by the amendments to IFRS Tsclbsure — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities” is not specifically regad for all interim periods, unless required by
IAS 34.

— 1AS 19 “Employee benefits'The amendment clarifies that, when determiningdiseount
rate for post-employment benefit obligations, ittle currency that the liabilities are
denominated in that is important, and not the agumhere they arise.

— IAS 34 “Interim financial reporting” The amendment clarifies what is meant by thereefze
in the standard to ‘information disclosed elsewtiaréne interim financial report’.

e |IFRS 11 (Amendment) “Joint Arrangements” (effectfoe annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016)This amendment requires an investor to apply ticiples of business combination
accounting when it acquires an interest in a jop#ration that constitutes a ‘business’.

e |AS 16 and IAS 38Amendments) “Clarification of Acceptable Methods Depreciation and
Amortisation” (effective for annual periods begingion or after 1 January 2016Jhis amendment
clarifies that the use of revenue-based methodsatoulate the depreciation of an asset is not
appropriate and it also clarifies that revenue @sggally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for
measuring the consumption of the economic bengfitsodied in an intangible asset.

e |AS 27 (Amendment) “Separate financial statemerfgdfective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016)This amendment allows entities to use the equitghotk to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and@ates in their separate financial statements and
clarifies the definition of separate financial staents.

e |IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (Amendments) “InvedtrBemities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception” (effective for annual periods beginniog or after 1 January 2016hese amendments
clarify the application of the consolidation exdeptfor investment entities and their subsidiariBise
amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.
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e |AS 1 (Amendment)” Disclosure Initiative” (effeaivfor annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016).These amendments clarify guidance in IAS 1 on risdity and aggregation, the
presentation of subtotals, the structure of finalhstatements and the disclosure of accountingipsli

¢ |IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customersfe@fve for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018)IFRS 15 has been issued in May 2014. The objedtiibe standard is to provide a
single, comprehensive revenue recognition model dbr contracts with customers to improve
comparability within industries, across industriasd across capital markets. It contains princighes
an entity will apply to determine the measuremdmewenue and timing of when it is recognised. The
underlying principle is that an entity will recogrirevenue to depict the transfer of goods or ceswio
customers at an amount that the entity expecte tentitled to in exchange for those goods or sesvic
The standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

e |IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and subsequent ammaedts to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 201BRS 9 replaces the guidance in IAS 39 which
deals with the classification and measurement mdrftial assets and financial liabilities and itoals
includes an expected credit losses model thatceplthe incurred loss impairment model used today.
IFRS 9 establishes a more principles-based appitoaebdge accounting and addresses inconsistencies
and weaknesses in the current model of IAS 39. Ghaup is currently investigating the impact of
IFRS 9 on its financial statements. The Group caenoently early adopt IFRS 9 as it has not been
endorsed by the EU.

e IFRS 16 “Leases” (effective for annual periods betng on or after 1 January 2019FRS 16 has
been issued in January 2016 and supersedes IAShE7objective of the standard is to ensure the
lessees and lessors provide relevant informationaimanner that faithfully represents those
transactions. IFRS 16 introduces a single lesseeuating model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a tefrmore than 12 months, unless the underlying asssft
low value. IFRS 16 substantially carries forware tlessor accounting requirements in IAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify itssksmas operating leases or finance leases, asddard
for those two types of leases differently. The @r@icurrently investigating the impact of IFRS di6
its financial statements. The standard has nobgenh endorsed by the EU.

e IAS 12 (Amendments) “Recognition of Deferred Tasefssfor Unrealisedlosses”(effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017hese amendments clarify the accounting for deflerre
tax assets for unrealised losses on debt instriemaatsured at fair value. The amendments have not
yet been endorsed by the EU.

2.2 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structuesdities) over which the Group has control. Theprcontrols
an entity when the Group is exposed to or hasgightariable returns from its involvement with #natity and
has the ability to affect those returns throughpitsver over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully aditted from
the date on which control is transferred to theuprarhey are deconsolidated from the date thatrobecgases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used tmaotfor business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealggeds on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also elimina®edfits and losses resulting from inter-companygegtions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminétecbunting policies of subsidiaries have been ckdnghere
necessary to ensure consistency with the polideptad by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equifysubsidiaries are shown separately in the caesed
statement of profit or loss, statement of other pahensive income, statement of changes in egndybalance
sheet respectively.
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(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiavwéhout change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that it result in loss of control are accounted foregsiity
transactions — that is, as transactions with thaewsrin their capacity as owners. The differendsvéen fair
value of any consideration paid and the releva@irestacquired of the carrying value of net assetshef
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losseglisposals to non-controlling interests are alEmrded in
equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any retanteckst in the entity is re-measured to its falue at the
date when control is lost, with the change in dagyamount recognised in profit or loss. The fafue is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsadly accounting for the retained interest as aodaate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amsuypreviously recognised in other comprehensive rireaon

respect of that entity are accounted for as if@Gmeup had directly disposed of the related assetmloilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recogniseathier comprehensive income are reclassified tditpyo
loss.

(d) Associates and Equity method

Associates are all entities over which the Group Isignificant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 60%e voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accountidgder the equity method, investments are initiall
recognised at cost and their carrying amount iseamed or decreased to recognise the investorig sifidhe
profit or loss of the investee after the date afuasition. The Group’s investment in associatetuithes goodwill
identified on acquisition (Note 2.8). Dividends ea@d or receivable from associates and joint vestuare
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amouttefnvestment.

If the ownership interest in an associate is redumat significant influence is retained, only a podionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in atbherprehensive income is reclassified to profiloss where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acqaisitprofit or loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-adiuisimovements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with aesponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses insmociate equals or exceeds its interest in theziass, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unledgst incurred legal or constructive obligations cadm
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whdhieee is any objective evidence that the investrrethe
associate is impaired. If this is the case, theu@roalculates the amount of impairment as the rdiffee
between the recoverable amount of the associatésaoarrying value.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and dtneam transactions between the Group and its iagseare
recognised in the Group’s financial statements dwolythe extent of unrelated investor’'s intereststhe
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated uthesgansaction provides evidence of an impairnaérthe
asset transferred. Accounting policies of assogiteve been changed where necessary to ensursteongi
with the policies adopted by the Group.

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangemeblisder IFRS 11, investments in joint arrangememts
classified as either joint operations or joint weat depending on the contractual rights and ditdigs of each
investor.

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equathod. Under the equity method of accounting, edts in
joint ventures are initially recognised at cost aljusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s sbftke post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements inrotbenprehensive income. When the Group’s sharessils in
a joint venture equals or exceeds its intereshénjobint ventures, the Group does not recognisenduriosses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made paymemtsbehalf of the joint venture. Unrealised gains o
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transactions between the Group and its joint vestare eliminated to the extent of the Group’sré@gin the
joint venture. Unrealised losses are also elimbhat@ess the transaction provides evidence of graimment of

the asset transferred. Accounting policies of joiehtures have been changed where necessary toeensu
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

A joint operation arises where the Group has rigbtthe assets and obligations of the operatior Ghoup
recognizes its share of the assets, obligationsniee and expenses of the jointly controlled opemnatncluding
its share of those held or incurred jointly, in eaespective line of its’ financial statements.

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used tooaot for all business combinations, regardless loéther
equity instruments or other assets are acquired.

The consideration transferred for the acquisitibra gubsidiary is the fair values of the assetssfierred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of thegatee and the equity interests issued by the Grdine
consideration transferred includes the fair valfiany asset or liability resulting from a contingeonnsideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and litiabi and contingent liabilities assumed in a hass
combination are measured initially at their faitues at the acquisition date. The Group recograsgsnon-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acqwisiby-acquisition basis, either at fair value drtlde non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of teeagnised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Where settlement of any part of cash considerasiateferred, the amounts payable in the futuredeeounted

to their present value as at the date of exchahlge.discount rate used is the entity’s incremebtatowing
rate, being the rate at which similar borrowing ldobe obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred lwy Group is recognised at fair value at the actjnisidate
and is classified either as equity or a financiability. Amounts classified as a financial liabyli are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with chaimgisr value recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess ofdhgregate of the consideration transferred anéaithealue of
non-controlling interest over the net identifiablgsets acquired and liabilities assumed. If thissickeration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets ofstliesidiary acquired, the difference is recogniseprofit or loss
(Note 2.8).

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner censistith the internal reporting provided to the athi
operating decision-maker. The executive committethé chief operating decision-maker, who makestegjic
decisions and is responsible for allocating resesiend assessing performance of the operating ségme

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eafcthe Group’s entities are measured using thezoakr of the
primary economic environment in which the entityemyies (the functional currency). The consolidéiteahcial
statements are presented in Euro, which is the g3dunctional and presentation currency. Givert tie
Group’s primary activities are in oil refining atmding, in line with industry practices, most ceudil and oil
product trading transactions are based on thenatienal reference prices of crude oil and oil prd in US
Dollars. Depending on the country of operatior, @roup translates this value to the local currgiityro in
most cases) at the time of any transaction.
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(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated imoftinctional currency using the exchange ratéseatiates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losseffing from the settlement of such transactimmd from
the translation of monetary assets and liabiliiesominated in foreign currencies at year-end exgphaates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive incdmey are deferred in equity if they relate to ldyiag
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment kedg

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presentieel &ame line as the transaction they relate tharstatement
of comprehensive income, except those that retab®trowings and cash, which are presented in aratpline
(“Currency exchange gains/(losses)”).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair viaw@eforeign currency are translated using the emge rates
at the date when the fair value was determinednslation differences on assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gaifoss. For example, translation differences on-maometary
assets and liabilities such as equities held atviue through profit or loss are recognized iofipror loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss and translatiifferences on non-monetary assets, such as esjaitassified
as available for sale, are included in other colmpnsive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Groantities that have a functional currency differénom the
presentation currency are translated into the ptatsen currency as follows:

0] assets and liabilities for each statement of fir@mmosition presented are translated at the apsin
rate at the date of that statement of financialtjpws
(ii) income and expenses for each statement of commiebemcome are translated at average

exchange rates (unless this average is not a rallgoapproximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, hiichvcase income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognimemthier comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising ftbentranslation of the net investment in foreigrem@tions,
and borrowings are recognised in other comprehensivome. When a foreign operation is sold, exchang
differences that were recorded in equity are reisgghin the statement of comprehensive income apthe
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on Huruisition of a foreign entity are treated as @ss&d
liabilities of the foreign entity and translatedthé closing rate. Exchange differences arisingracegnised in
other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly ldndldings (plant, the owned retail network anda#$), oil
refineries, vessels and equipment. Property, @adtequipment are shown at historical cost lesarackated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditina is directly attributable to the acquisitiontioé items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s ngrgyinount or recognised as a separate asset, Epapfe,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Groapd the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Theytayramount of the replaced part is derecognisegais and
maintenance are charged to the income statemertcasred. Refinery turnaround costs that take place
periodically are capitalised and charged againsbrite on a straight line basis until the next schestu
turnaround to the extent that such costs improvkeeithe useful economic life of the equipment tr i
production capacity.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(17) / (65)



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordande WRS
for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

Assets under construction are assets (mainly celat¢he refinery units) that are in the processasfstruction
or development, and are carried at cost. Cost diedwcost of construction, professional fees andradiirect
costs. Assets under construction are not depreciagethe corresponding assets are not yet avaiflablise.

Land is also not depreciated. Depreciation on adsetalculated using the straight-line methodlkocate the
cost of each asset to its residual value overstisnated useful economic life, as shown on theetdiglow for
the main classes of assets:

— Buildings 13 — 40 years
— Plant & Machinery

= Specialised industrial installations and Machinery 10 — 35 years

= Pipelines 30 — 40 years
= Other equipment 5—-10 years
— Motor Vehicles
= LPG and white products carrier vessels 8 — 25 years
= Other Motor Vehicles 5—10 years
— Furniture and fixtures
= Computer hardware 3 -5 years
= Other furniture and fixtures 4 — 10 years

Included in specialised industrial installations aefinery units, petrochemical plants, tank féiedi and petrol
stations. Based on technical studies performed,ettpeected useful life of the new refinery unitsefBina
refinery) has been estimated to be up to 35 y&ds.remaining useful economic life of other refminnits has
been reviewed and adjusted from 1 July 2013 amgkmeral does not exceed 25 years.

The assets’ residual values and estimated usedmosaic lives are reviewed and adjusted if appragyiat the
end of each reporting period.

If the asset’s carrying amount is greater thanegsimated recoverable amount then it is written mow
immediately to its recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined bparomg the proceeds with the carrying amount. Tlaese
included in the statement of comprehensive incoritieim/Other operating income / (expenses) and ogfaéns/
(losses)'.

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable e facquisition, construction or production of aldfyiag asset
are added to the cost of the asset during the gpefitime that is required to complete and preplaecasset for
its intended use.

Borrowing costs are capitalised to the extent thatls are borrowed specifically for the purpos®lfiaining a
qualifying asset. To the extent that funds are dwed generally and used for the purpose of obtgimin
qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costgjikle for capitalisation is determined by applyiag
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on thattagdl other borrowing costs are expensed as meclr
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2.8 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of the considerdtemmsferred over the Company's interest in netvalue of
the net identifiable assets, liabilities and cogeint liabilities of the acquiree and the fair valfethe non-
controlling interest in the acquiree at the datacagfuisition. Gains and losses on the disposah @&mity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the ignsold. In the event that the fair value of then@pany’s
share of the identifiable assets of the acquirdibigiary at the date of acquisition is higher thla@m cost, the
excess remaining is recognised immediately in tatement of comprehensive income.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating unitstfoe purpose of impairment testing. The allocat®miade to
those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-gangrunits that are expected to benefit from thsiress
combination in which the goodwill arose, identifiedcording to operating segment. Goodwill impairtmen
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequeiftlgyents or changes in circumstances indicatetanpial
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compé to the recoverable amount, which is the higiiealue

in use and fair value less costs to sell. Any impant is recognised immediately as an expense sambti
subsequently reversed.

(b) Retall Service Stations Usage rights

Retail Service Stations Usage rights representoupfiump-sum amounts paid upon the signing to osvioér
such retail sites for the use and control of thwise stations. Such payments are made to secaraling and
future revenues for the Group that were not avkalabthe past and are therefore capitalised im@@nce with
IAS 38, Intangible Assets. They are amortised dlveiife of the acquired right.

(c) Licences and rights

Licenses and rights have a definite useful life arelcarried at cost less accumulated amortisaiprartisation
is being calculated using the straight-line mettwdllocate their cost over their estimated uskfak.

Licenses and rights also include Upstream Explonatights which are amortised over the period & th
exploration period as per the terms of the releliaances.

(d) Computer software

These include primarily the costs of implementihg {ERP) computer software program. Acquired comput
software licences are capitalised on the basishefdosts incurred to acquire and bring to use fexiic
software. These costs are amortised using theybktriiinie method over their estimated useful livé$a(5 years).

2.9 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

(a) Exploration and evaluation assets

During the exploration period and before a comnaéreiable discovery, oil and natural gas explomatand
evaluation expenditures are expensed. Geologichbanphysical costs as well as costs directly @ssatwith
an exploration are expensed as incurred. Explorgitioperty leasehold acquisition costs are capédliwithin
intangible assets and amortised over the periaheficence or in relation to the progress of théviies if
there is a substantial difference.

(b) Development of tangible and intangible assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation ompdetion of infrastructure facilities such as ptaths, pipelines
and the drilling of commercially proven developmertlls is capitalized within tangible and intangitdssets
according to their nature. When development is deted on a specific field, it is transferred to guotion
assets. No depreciation and/or amortization isggdhduring development.
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(c) Oil and gas production assets

Oil and gas properties are aggregated exploratiohexaluation tangible assets and development eipesas
associated with the production of proved reserves.

(d) Depreciation/amortization

Oil and gas properties/intangible assets are degteelfamortized using the unit-of-production methodit-of-

production rates are based on proved developedvessavhich are oil, gas and other mineral reseegtisnated
to be recovered from existing facilities using eumtr operating methods. Oil and gas volumes areidenesl
produced once they have been measured throughsvedt@ustody transfer or sales transaction pointhea
outlet valve on the field storage tank.

(e) Impairment — exploration and evaluation assets

The exploration property leasehold acquisition €@st tested for impairment whenever facts andicistances
indicate impairment. For the purposes of assedsipgirment, the exploration property leasehold &itjon
costs subject to testing are grouped with existagh-generating units (CGUs) of production fieldat tare
located in the same geographical region correspgrtdi each licence.

(f) Impairment — proved oil and gas properties am@angible assets

Proven oil and gas properties and intangible assetseviewed for impairment whenever events ongba in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount n@tybe recoverable. An impairment loss is recagphifor
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amounéeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable ani®tim
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs toasall value in use. For the purposes of assessingjrimgnt, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which theeesaparately identifiable cash flows.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are sudggject to amortisation and are tested annuallynfipairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circamseés indicate that they might be impaired. Asteis are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are tefedmpairment whenever events or changes in cistantes
indicate that the carrying amount may not be ree. An impairment loss is recognised for the amdy
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its made amount. The recoverable amount is the highan
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and valussa(discounted cash flows an asset is expectgenerate based
upon management’s expectations of future economicaperating conditions). For the purposes of za3gs
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest Idgelahich there are separately identifiable cdslw$ (cash-
generating units). Prior impairments of non-finahcssets (other than goodwill) are reviewed fossjiae
reversal at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHe¥ang categories: at fair value through profitloss, held-to-
maturity, loans and receivables, and availablestde. The classification depends on the purposafiich the
financial assets were acquired. Management deteemthe classification of its financial assets atiah
recognition and re-evaluates this designation atyereporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profitloss

A financial asset is classified in this categoradfjuired principally for the purpose of sellingtie short term
or if so designated by management. Derivatives adse categorised as ‘held for trading’ unless theg
designated as hedges. Assets in this categoryjassified as current assets if they are either fegldrading or
are expected to be realised within 12 months ofetiie: of the reporting period, otherwise they aessified as
non-current.
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(b) Held to maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeafinial assets, quoted in an active market, witledfixor
determinable payments and fixed maturity that aityehas the positive intention and ability to hadtdmaturity,
other than those that the entity upon initial redtign designates as at fair value through prafitoss, available
for sale or loans and receivables.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finanagaets with fixed or determinable payments that rere
quoted in an active market and with no intentiontrafling. They are included in current assets, @xéar
maturities greater than 12 months after the entlefeporting period. These are classified as norent assets.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are designated as available-for-sa#mdial assets if they do not have fixed maturitied fixed or
determinable payments, and management intenddddtem for the medium to long-term. Financial &sskat
are not classified in any of the other categoriesaso included in the available-for-sale categdilyey are
included in non-current assets unless managemeamtds to dispose of the investment within 12 mowthhe
end of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivdtizding financial asset out of the held for tradaategory
if the financial asset is no longer held for thegmse of selling it in the near term. Financialeasother than
loans and receivables are permitted to be recladsibut of the held for trading category only irrera
circumstances arising from a single event thatnasual and highly unlikely to recur in the neanrtein
addition, the Group may choose to reclassify fim@nassets that would meet the definition of loaml
receivables out of the held for trading or avasafur-sale categories if the Group has the intengiod ability to
hold these financial assets for the foreseeableduir until maturity at the date of reclassifioati

Reclassifications are made at fair value as ofrdwassification date. Fair value becomes the nest or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversalaioi/élue gains or losses recorded before recieaSdn date
are subsequently made. Effective interest ratefirfancial assets reclassified to loans and rebé#gaand held-
to-maturity categories are determined at the reiflaation date.

2.11.3 Recognition and measurement

Financial assets carried at fair value throughipeofd loss are initially recognised at fair vakmed transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of compreleeinsiome.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are resgagan the trade-date — the date on which the Geoopnits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assetmiigdly recognised at fair value plus transanticosts for all
financial assets not carried at fair value thropgbfit or loss. Financial assets are derecogniseevihe rights
to receive cash flows from the investments haveregpr have been transferred and the Group hasfaaed
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investmare carried at amortised cost using the effedtiterest
method. Realised and unrealised gains and lossésgairom changes in the fair value of the ‘Fin@hassets at
fair value through profit or loss’ category arelimted in the statement of comprehensive incomberperiod in
which they have arisen. Changes in the fair valumaonetary and non-monetary financial assets dladsas

available for sale are recognized in other comprsive income. When securities classified as aviailedy sale

are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair valugisithents recognized in equity are included initftome

statement as “gains or loss from investment séesitit

The fair values of quoted investments are baseduorent bid prices. If the market for a financiakat is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Grouglelishes fair value by using valuation techniqUé®ese include
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the use of recent arm’s-length transactions, rafexeo other instruments that are substantiallystme and
discounted cash flow analysis refined to refleetifsuer’s specific circumstances.

2.11.4  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andndseamount reported in the balance sheet, when tha legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amoants there is an intention to settle on a net barsigalize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Tdgally enforceable right must not be contingenfudnre event
and must be enforceable in the normal course dhbss and in the event of default, insolvency arkbaptcy
of the company or the counterparty.

2.11.5 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reportifagpehether there is objective evidence that anfiia asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. Impaintrtesting for receivables is described in not&2.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

In the case of equity securities classified aslalbbs for sale, a significant or prolonged deciim¢he fair value
of the security below its cost is considered inedmining whether the securities are impaired. I anch

evidence exists for available-for-sale financiaeds, the cumulative loss — measured as the differbetween
the acquisition cost and the current fair valusslany impairment loss on that financial asset iposly

recognised in profit or loss — is removed from &gaind recognised in the statement of compreherisoame.

Impairment losses recognised in the statement wipcehensive income on equity instruments are narsed
through the statement of comprehensive income.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activiies

As part of its risk management policy, the Grouitizaets currency and commodity derivatives to mitegéhe

impact of volatility in commodity prices and foreigxchange rates. Derivative financial instrumanésinitially

recognized at fair value on the date a derivatim@ract is entered into and are subsequently resaned at their
fair value. Changes in fair values of the derivatfinancial instruments are recognised at eachrtiegodate
either in the statement of comprehensive incoma equity, depending on whether the derivativedsignated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the naturbeftem being hedged. The Group designates ceatéainatives
as either:

(a) Hedges of the fair value of recognised assetsabililies or a firm commitment (fair value hedge);

(b) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a remssgl asset or liability or a highly probable fastc
transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents, at the inception of the tretitga the relationship between hedging instrumemd
hedged items, as well as its risk management obgsctand strategy for undertaking various hedging
transactions. The Group also documents its assessb@th at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis
whether derivatives that are used in hedging titimszs are highly effective in offsetting changedair values

or cash flows of hedged items.

The instruments used for this risk management declcommodity exchange traded contracts (ICE fuxufel
refinery margin forwards, product price forward tants or options.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair vahfethese derivatives is recognized in other comgmsive
income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffextiportion is recognized immediately in the statetmzn
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comprehensive income within “Other operating incoméxpenses) and other gains / (losses)”. Amounts
accumulated in equity are recycled in the stateroémbmprehensive income in the periods when tligée
item affects profit or loss (i.e. when the foredaahsaction being hedged takes place) within abséales.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, bedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge adtayrany
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at thiate remains in equity and is recognized when tiredast
transaction is ultimately recognized in the stateinaod comprehensive income. When a forecast traiogais no
longer expected to occur, the derivative is degieied and the cumulative gain or loss that waerteg in
equity is immediately transferred to the statenm@ntomprehensive income within “Other operatingoime /
(expenses) and other gains / (losses)”.

Derivatives held for trading

The derivatives that do not qualify for hedge acting are classified as held-for-trading and actedrior at
fair value through profit or loss. Changes in th& falue of the derivative instruments that do qoalify for
hedge accounting are recognized immediately irstheement of comprehensive income.

2.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fairevalbiere there is reasonable assurance that thewithbe
received and the Group will comply with all attadheonditions. Government grants related to Propé&tiamt
and Equipment received by the Group are initialgarded as deferred government grants and included
“Other long term liabilities”. Subsequently, thenearedited to the statement of comprehensive iecover the
useful lives of the related assets in direct refathip to the depreciation charged on such assets.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories comprise crude oil and other raw matgrirefined and semi-finished products, petrochalsj
merchandise, consumables and other spare parts.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andrealisable value. Cost is determined using the thipn
weighted average cost method. The cost of finigimmts and work in progress comprises raw matedaisct
labour, other direct costs and related productieeriveads. It does not include borrowing costs. fdetisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinemurse of business, less estimated costs of eatiopland
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Spasegensumed within a year are carried as invgrdaod
recognized in profit or loss when consumed.

Under IEA and EU regulations, Greece has a politymaintaining 90 days of strategic stock reserves
(Compulsory Stock Obligations). This responsibilg passed on to all companies who import andisdte
domestic market who have the responsibility to m@mand finance the appropriate stock levels. hSstocks
are part of the operating stocks and are valuetth®@same basis.

2.15 Trade receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 20-90 dayg, are recognised initially at fair value andsaguently
measured at amortised cost using the effectivedastanethod, less provision for impairment. A psiom for
impairment of trade receivables is established wihene is clear evidence that the Group will notalbée to
collect all amounts due according to the origieahts of the receivables.

Trade receivables include bills of exchange andngsory notes from customers.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtorrgbability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy fimancial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payane considered indicators that the receivabimjsired.
The amount of the provision is the difference betwéhe asset’s carrying amount and the presene vaflu
estimated future cash flows, discounted at theirmalgeffective interest rate. The amount of thevjmion is
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recognised in the statement of comprehensive inc@mé is included in “Selling, Distribution and
Administrative expenses”.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the immpent loss decreases and the decrease can bedrelate
objectively to an event occurring after the impamnnwas recognised (such as an improvement ineb&ds
credit rating), the reversal of the previously mpaised impairment loss is recognised in the codat#d income
statement.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hapdsiig held at call with banks, other short-terghhy liquid
investments such as marketable securities andd@pesits with original maturities of three monthdess.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increaterdsts directly attributable to the issue of n&vares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction fronptioeeeds, net of tax.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair valunst of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings aitesequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference betweemptbceeds (net of transaction costs) and the ngtitemvalue
is recognised in the statement of comprehensiveniecover the period of the borrowings using thecatite
interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilittesracognised as transaction costs of the loametextent that it
is probable that some or all of the facility wik ldrawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred tivg draw-

down occurs. To the extent there is no evidenceitlig probable that some or all of the facilitylivbe drawn

down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-paymenidardity services and amortised over the periotheffacility to

which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet wthenobligation specified in the contract is disgjeat,
cancelled or expired. The difference between theyicey amount of a financial liability that has Ibee
extinguished or transferred to another party aedctinsideration paid, including any noncash aseatsferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profilags as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Group has an unconditional right to deédtlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the eridhe reporting period. At the end of the repartperiod payable
amounts of bank overdrafts are included within baings in current liabilities on the statement wfahcial
position. In the statement of cash flows bank onadtd are shown within financing activities.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense or credit for the period comprisgsent and deferred tax. Tax is recognised irstheement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent thatates to items recognized directly in equitythis case, the
tax is also recognized in equity.

The income tax or credit for the period is the payable on the current period’s taxable income dasethe
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdictiorjuattd by changes in deferred tax assets and iliebil
attributable to temporary differences and to unuagdosses.

The current income tax charge is calculated orbtsss of the tax laws enacted or substantivelytedaat the
end of the reporting period in the countries whtiee Group’s subsidiaries and associates operatg@amerate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluatestijpns taken in tax returns with respect to $ituns in
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which applicable tax regulation is subject to iptetation and establishes provisions where appatgpon the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tdoaities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using ttability method, on temporary differences arisimgfween the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their aagramounts in the consolidated financial statesefhe
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it @sidfrom initial recognition of an asset or lialyilin a
transaction, other than a business combinatiort, @hathe time of the transaction does not affethesi
accounting or taxable profit or loss. Deferred meotax is determined using tax rates (and lawg)hhee been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end ofdherting period and are expected to apply wherrd¢tated
deferred income tax asset is realised or the daféncome tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to ttentethat it is probable that future taxable profitl be
available against which the temporary differenaas lze utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areevffghen there is a legally enforceable right teefficurrent tax
assets against current tax liabilities and wherdéferred income tax assets and liabilities reflai@come taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on eithertthable entity or different taxable entities, wéhnere is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group participates in various pension schemies.payments are determined by the local legisiaind the
funds’ regulations. The Group has both defined fieared defined contribution plans.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defian amount of pension benefit that an employéeegeive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or moreifasuch as age, years of service and compensation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan und&ich the Group pays fixed contributions into paate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive gdilbns to pay further contributions if the fundedaot hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the beneditging to employee service in the current andrygreriods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays itbutions to publiclyadministered Social Security funds on a
mandatory basis. The Group has no further paymbligaiions once the contributions have been palie T
contributions are recognised as employee benefierses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a clasturer a reduction in the future payments is add.

The liability recognised in the statement of finah@osition in respect of defined benefit penspans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligatiothatend of the reporting period, less the fair galfiplan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated anlyubly independent actuaries using the projected crgidit
method. The present value of the defined benefigation is determined by discounting the estimafigtdre
cash outflows using interest rates of high-qualityporate bonds that are denominated in the curienahich
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms #tumity approximating to the terms of the relateshgion
liability.

The current service cost of the defined benefinplacognised in the income statement in employsreefit

expense, except where included in the cost of aataseflects the increase in the defined benddigation

resulting from employee service in the current ydmmnefit changes curtailments and settlements. riéie
interest cost is calculated by applying the distoate to the net balance of the defined benefigation and

the fair value of plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experiadjestments and changes in actuarial assumptiensharged
or credited to equity in other comprehensive incamtde period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediatelyeimitome statement.
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(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmernerisiinated by the Group before the normal retingme
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntaryndgthcy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlieheffollowing dates: (a) when the Group can no longéhdraw

the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the gmétognises costs for a restructuring that is iwithe scope of
IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination bigseln the case of an offer made to encouragentary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measuaséd on the number of employees expected to atiwept
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 monthsiathe end of the reporting period are discountetheir
present value.

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a shares option plan. Thedaialint to be expensed over the vesting periodtesmeed

by reference to the fair value of the options gednit the date of granting. Non-market vestingddans are
included in assumptions about the number of optihasare expected to vest. At each reporting degiwd, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of otithat are expected to vest. It recognises thadmpf the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the staent of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company isseesshares. The proceeds received net of any lgirect
attributable transaction costs are credited toesbapital (nominal value) and share premium whenotbtions
are exercised.

2.21 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initidlfgia value and are subsequently measured at &®drtost
using the effective interest method. Accounts pleyabe classified as current liabilities if paymentiue within
one year or less. If not, they are presented ascoment liabilities.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restrtiaty costs and legal claims are recognised wheiGtioeip has
a present legal or constructive obligation as altes past events; it is probable that an outfloiwesources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the arhdhas been reliably estimated. Restructuring prorss
comprise lease termination penalties and emplogemination payments. Provisions are not recognfeed
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value cdgesment’s best estimate of the expenditure requirsettle
the present obligation at the end of the reportiagod. The discount rate used to determine theeprtevalue
reflects current market assessments of the timeevafl money and the increases specific to theliiabi

The obligation of the Group to meet its CO2 emigdiargets is treated as follows: European ETS tegis
allocates emission rights to refineries annuallylowances received are recognised at cost. A piaviss
recognized for the obligation to pay for the engasguantities that exceed the pre-allocated alleesnThe
provision recognised is measured at the amountittiexpected to cost the entity to settle thigaltion. This
will be the market price at the balance sheet dftkee allowances required to cover the emissioadario date.

2.23  Environmental liabilities

Environmental expenditure that relates to currenfuture revenues is expensed or capitalised asopppte.
Expenditure that relates to an existing conditiansed by past operations and that does not cotgribwcurrent
or future earnings is expensed.
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The Group has an environmental policy which congpligth existing legislation and any obligationsuléag
from its environmental and operational licencesorder to comply with all rules and regulations throup has
set up a monitoring mechanism in accordance wighréguirements of the relevant authorities. Furtioze,
investment plans are adjusted to reflect any knéwtare environmental requirements. The above meato
expenses are estimated based on the relevant emérdal studies.

Liabilities for environmental remediation costs aeeognised when environmental assessments or-afeaare
probable and the associated costs can be reasomatiiyated. Generally, the timing of these provisio
coincides with the commitment to a formal plan ofien or, if earlier, on divestment or on closufar@mctive
sites. The amount recognised is the best estinfateecexpenditure required. If the effect of thmei value of
money is material, the amount recognised is thegmtevalue of the estimated future expenditure.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale oflg@md services, net of value-added tax and angegaties,
rebates and discounts. Revenue is recognised &xthat that it is probable that the economic bigneiill flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably meds&evenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods — wholesale

Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when timéfisant risks and rewards of ownership of the gobdve
passed to the buyer, the Group has delivered tbdupts to the customer, the customer has accepted t
products and collectability of the related receleabs reasonably assured.

(b) Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group erdgydelivered products to the customer, the custdrasr
accepted the products and collectability of thatesl receivables is reasonably assured.

(c) Sales of services

For sales of services, revenue is recognised inatdo@unting period in which the services are resdieby
reference to stage of completion of the specifams$action and assessed on the basis of the aeétes
provided as a proportion of the total servicesa@lovided.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effectiterest method. When a receivable is impaired,Gheup
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amdweing the estimated future cash flow discourdaed
original effective interest rate of the instrumeanid continues unwinding the discount as interesime.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right teenee payment is established.

2.25 Leases

Leases of property plant and equipment, where theuiis has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Febeases are capitalised at the lease’s inceptidredower of
the fair value of the leased property and the prtiegglue of the minimum lease payments. Each Ipagment is
allocated between the liability and finance chargesas to achieve a constant periodic rate ofésteon the
finance balance outstanding. The correspondingatestiligations, net of finance charges, are inalde
“Borrowings”. The interest element of the finanaesttis charged to the statement of comprehensisenie
over the lease period so as to produce a constaioidic rate of interest on the remaining balanfcéhe liability
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for each period. The property, plant and equipraeqtired under finance leases are depreciatedtioweshorter
of the asset'’s useful life and the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially mifis@nt portion of the risks and rewards of owidpsare
classified as operating leases. Payments made wpeeating leases (net of any incentives receivenh fthe
lessor) are charged to the statement of compreleisiome on a straight-line basis over the peoitithe lease.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholdeysdcognised as a liability in the Group’s finahsiatements
in the period in which the dividends are approvedhe Group’s Shareholders’ General Meeting.

2.27 Changes in accounting policies

As stated in Note 2.1.1, the Group adopted the dments included in IASB’s 2011-2013 cycle of annual
improvements for the first time for the annual mjmg period commencing 1 January 2015. The adoptif
these standards did not have significant impa¢herGroup’s policies or disclosures.

2.28 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have beesmssifibd to conform to changes in presentatiohéncturrent
year.

3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities are primarily centred on Dmiveam Refining (incl. Petrochemicals) & Marketiofy
petroleum products; with secondary activities retato exploration of hydrocarbons and power getimaand
trading. As such, the Group is exposed to a vanétiinancial and commodity markets risks includiiogeign
exchange and commodity price risk, credit riskyikity risk, cash flow risk and interest-rate rigk.line with
international best practices and within the contefkiocal markets and legislative framework, theo@y’'s
overall risk management policies aim at reducingsfidle exposure to market volatility and / or natigg its
adverse effects on the financial position of the@wprto the extent possible. In general, the keyofacthat
impact the Group’s operations are summarised &sifsl

Greek MacrosDevelopments in Greece during the second halbébAreferendum and capital controls) had a
negative effect on the Greek econorfifie economy slipped back into recession in the skbaif of 2015 after
growing in late 2014 and during the first half @1%. GDP declined by -0,7% in 2015 compared tonarease

of +0,8% in 2014. Domestic fuels consumption insezhby +4,8% in 2015 mainly as a result of incrdase
heating gasoil which is attributed to lower oil dguat prices and to the reduction of excise duttethe end of
2014. Motor fuels demand increased during the Figdt of 2015 by +2,8%, however during the secoall bf

the year consumption followed a similar trend toFG&bntracting by -1,3%, resulting in a year on yearease

of +0,6%. Growth is projected to gain some momenturthe second half of 2016 as consumer confidésice
expected to strengthen and as structural reforiks &fect with the anticipation of boosting expos&sd
investment. Inflation is expected to remain low dige the very depressed state of the economy and
unemployment is expected to gradually decline.

Despite the deterioration of the Greek economy(th5? the approval of a € 86 billion bailout prograenin
August and the successful recapitalisation of tlsgstemic banks during December were key stepsrttsihe
stabilisation of the macroeconomic and financialiemment in Greece.

The bailout program was approved to be dispensediatments following the adoption of a series gfesd
upon changes and austerity measures. Allotmenaitdui funds commenced in tranches during 2015,dvew
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in order for Greece to secure the next tranchefitereview of the bailout program has to be ctetgd. This is
expected upon implementation of specific measuyesea as part of the agreement.

While the bailout program has reduced the risk obnemic instability in Greece, concerns around its
implementation remain as reflected in debt capitatkets risk assessment and pricing. The implertientaf
the program and its effects on the economy arerzbtiee Group’s control.

In this economic environment, management contiguadsesses the situation and its possible futupadtnto
ensure that all necessary actions and measurdakate in order to minimize any impact on the GreuBreek
operations.

Currency: The Group’s business is naturally hedged agairfishetional currency risk. All petroleum industry
transactions are referenced to international beacknquotes for crude oil and oil products in USDI A
international purchases and sales of crude oilpgiaducts are conducted in USD and all sales irgallmarkets
are either in USD prices or converted to local ency for accounting and settlement reasons usieadJBD
reference on the date of the transaction.

Prices: Commodity price risk management is supervised Wisk Management Committee which includes
Finance and Trading departments’ Senior Manager&mt-commodity price risk management is carriedlyut
the Finance Department under policies approvechbyBoard of Directors. The Finance Department ifleat
and evaluates financial risks in close co-operatith the Group’s operating units.

Securing continuous crude oil suppli€evelopments in the global and regional crudemaitkets in the last 18
months have reduced the cost of raw material ferGhoup and increased optionality. Crude oil pridespped
by more than 70% compared to June 2014 peak. Tdeadopments led to lower cost of crude, for batleet
and especially sour grades, which represent theskeyce of feedstock for complex refiners like Heit
Petroleum, improving the competitive position of dMeefiners vs. their global peers and leading tghér
refining margins, albeit with a significant one affzfentory loss. The Group was able to take adegntd this
development and diversify its crude basket comptargutevious years.

Financing of operationsGiven financial market developments since 201é&,kiby priorities of the Group have
been the management of the ‘Assets and Liabilitiezturity profile, funding with respect to the cdetpn of
its strategic investment plan and liquidity risk fiperations. As a result of these key priorityiatives and in
line with its medium term financing plan, the Graugs maintained a mix of long term, medium term stmokt
term credit facilities by taking into consideratibank and debt capital markets’ credit capacityval as cash
flow planning and commercial requirements. Approaiely 60% of total debt is financed by medium todo
term committed credit lines while the rest is finad by short term working capital credit faciliti€Buring
2014, the Group issued two Eurobonds, a $400 miliieo year Eurobond maturing in May 2016 and a €325
million five year Eurobond maturing in July 201%€l cost of the two issues was lower than the coatybar
marginal cost of funding during the previous yeaflecting improvements in both country risk andnpany
fundamentals. Furthermore, during 2014 the Gromegetiated term and other credit facilities in esscef €2
billion with core relationship banks and achievetpioved terms regarding cost, maturity profile @esheral
terms and conditions. During 2015 the parent compammcluded a €200 million three year facility tot @as
backstop facility for general corporate needs witie of its core relationship banks. Overall, dur2@d 4-2015
the Group continued to diversify its funding sowcaptimise its debt liability portfolio, extendetidebt maturity
profile and reduce financing costs despite thelehgés presented in the domestic and internatematonment
in 2015. Additional information is disclosed in pgraph (c) Liquidity risk below and Note 16.

Capital controls:The Group responded to the imposition of capitadtimds, with all necessary measures and
adjustments to its supply chain, enabling uninteted supply, refining and trading operations.

The measures imposed by the Greek government dura8 2015 restricted cross border payments of anmty k
without the prior written approval of a committémat has been set up for this purpose at the MynistFinance.
Since initial imposition, capital controls are guatly being relaxed, with some responsibility fqypeovals
being transferred to the banks for up to certaiowmts, daily limits for the banking system increasand other
measures, thus facilitating international paymémtthe country. At present, there are no officedtrictions on
domestic transactions which are gradually beingnadized.
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The capital controls impact the ability of the Goaw effect payments for imports of crude oil amdducts to
its foreign suppliers if these are not approvedhs®ycommittee. The risk is mitigated by the faetttimports of
crude oil and fuel products are considered by ththaities as critical for the economy, taking pitip over
other payments. There has therefore been no adwepset on the operations of the Group and thexjsected
to continue going forward. In addition, the Groupintains accounts with its foreign core relatiopshanks
outside Greece which are funded by export recedgbhd can also be used to pay foreign supplities.efore
the risk of disruption to normal operations of tBeoup as a result of the imposition of capital colst is
considered low. The impact of capital controls oroWp operations was limited as a result of appeteri
planning and risk management.

Capital managemenifhe second key priority of the Group has been theagement of its Assets. Overall the
Group has around €2,9 billion of capital employelich is driven from working capital, investment fired
assets and its investment in DEPA Group. Curresgtasare mainly funded with current liabilitiesdfinshort
term bank debt) which are used to finance workiagital (inventories and receivables). As a restilthe
Group’s investment plan, during the period 2007204et debt level has increased to 39% of totaitaap
employed while the rest is financed through shddste equity. The Group has started reducing itsdeét
levels through utilization of the incremental opamg cashflows, post completion and operation & trew
Elefsina refinery, and plans to reduce these eughdr with the expected sale proceeds of its stakzESFA,
which is expected to lead to lower Debt to Equdtia, better matched Asset and Liability maturitpfpes as
well as lower financing costs.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

As explained in note 2.5 “Foreign currency transldt the functional and presentation currencyhef Group is
the Euro. However, in line with industry practiae &ll international crude oil and oil trading trantons,
underlying commaodity prices are based on internafioeference prices quoted in US dollars.

Foreign currency exchange risk arises on threestgbexposure:

e Financial position translation risk: Most of the inventory held by the Group is repdria Euro
while its underlying value is determined in USD.usha possible devaluation of the USD against the
Euro leads to a reduction in the realisable valueweentory included in the statement of financial
position. In order to manage this risk, a significpart of the Group’s payables (sourcing of crade
and petroleum products) is denominated in USD tieguto an offsetting impact to the one described
above. It should be noted however, that while ia tdase of USD devaluation the impact on the
statement of financial position is mitigated, irses of USD appreciation the mark-to-market valumatio
of USD-denominated debt liabilities leads to a régb foreign exchange loss, with no compensating
benefit as stocks continue to be included in théestent of financial position at cost. It is estieth
that at 31 December 2015 if the Euro had weakemminst the US dollar by 5% with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax results would Hmen approximately €26 million lower, as a resiilt
foreign exchange losses on translation of US doléarominated receivables, payables, cash and
borrowings.

e Gross Margin transactions and translation risk: The fact that most of the transactions in crude oi
and oil products are based on international Pl&at8® prices leads to exposure in terms of the Gross
Margin translated in Euro. Market volatility haspactted adversely on the cost of mitigating this
exposure; as a result the Group did not activetigbematerial amounts of the Gross margin exposure.
This exposure is linearly related to the Gross maofithe Group in that the appreciation/ depréciat
of Euro vs. USD leads to a respective translati@s/ (gain) on the period results.

e Local subsidiaries exposure:Where the Group operates in non-Euro markets tiseam additional
exposure in terms of cross currency translatioweenh USD (price base), Euro reporting currency and
local currency. Where possible the Group seeksapage this exposure by transferring the exposure
for pooling at Group levels. Although material focal subsidiaries’ operations, the overall expesur
is not considered material for the Group.
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(ii) Commaodity price risk

The Group’s primary activity as a refiner involegosure to commodity prices. Changes in curreffdrovard
absolute price levels vs acquisition costs afféet value of inventory while exposure to refining rgias
(combination of crude oil and product prices) dffixe future cash flows of the business.

In the case of price risk, the level of exposurddatermined by the amount of priced inventory eariat the end
of the reporting period. In periods of sharp pdeeline, as Group policy is to report its inventatythe lower of
historical cost and net realisable value, results @fected by the reduction in the carrying vabfethe
inventory. The extent of the exposure relates tliyeo the level of stocks and rate of price deseearhis
exposure is partly hedged with paper derivativeth extent that the cost of such instruments issiciered
attractive from a risk-return point of view and mdi to the structure of the market (contango vs.
backwardation) as well as credit capacity for ldaged transactions.

Refining margin exposure relates to the absolutellef margin generated by the operation of thénesfes.
This is determined by Platt's prices and variesaodaily basis; as an indication of the impact te @roup
financial results, a change in the refinery mardjias a proportionate impact on the Group’s profitgbWhere
possible, the Group aims to hedge the part ofritslyction which will be sold in the future and henill be
exposed to forward pricing, thus generating higivére risk upon completion of the sale. This, hogrevs not
possible to do in all market conditions, such dmekwardated market structure, where future pracesbelow
their spot levels, or when there is no credit capdor derivatives transactions.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s operating income and cash flows aremmaterially affected by changes in market interagts,
given the low level of prevailing reference ratBsrrowings issued at variable rates expose the tolcash
flow interest rate risk, while borrowings issuedfized rates expose the Group to fair value interate risk.
Approximately one third of the Group’s borrowing® at fixed rates of interest. Depending on thelkwf net
debt at any given period of time, any change in blase interest rates (EURIBOR or LIBOR), has a
proportionate impact on the Groups results. At 3cdéber 2015, if interest rates on Euro denominated
borrowings had been 0,5% higher with all other atalés held constant, pre-tax profit for the yeaulMichave
been Euro €11 million lower.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Creditaisses from cash and cash equivalents, derivéitiamcial
instruments and deposits with banks and finanaiatitutions, as well as credit exposures to whddesa
customers, including outstanding receivables andnnoitted transactions. If wholesale customers are
independently rated, these ratings are used. Otberfrthere is no independent rating, risk conéissesses the
credit quality of the customer, taking into accoitst financial position, past experience and otfeators.
Individual risk limits are set based on internakaternal ratings in accordance with limits setwy board. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitore@®ales to retail customers are settled in cashsorg major
credit cards.

Due to market conditions, the approval of credikris subject to a more strict process involvinglalels of
senior management. A Group credit committee mogitoaterial credit exposures on a Group wide b&ss.
Note 11 for further disclosure on credit risk.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management entails maintagnsufficient cash reserves and financial headrabrough
committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamicuratof the underlying businesses, the Group ainmeaimtain
flexibility in its funding operations through theeiof cash and committed credit facilities.

Where deemed beneficial to the Group, and in otdesichieve better commercial terms (eg. betterimgjc
higher credit limits, longer payment terms), the@r provides for the issuance of short term lettérsredit or
guarantee for the payment of liabilities arisingnfr trade creditors. These instruments are issuad) uke
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Group’s existing credit lines with local and intational banks, and are subject to the approvedstemu
conditions of each bank, regarding the amount,etiry, maximum tenor, collateral etc. To the extibmt
liabilities covered materialise before the balasbeet date, they are included in the balance shekdr trade
creditors. Further details of the relevant loams@ovided in Note 16.

The Group’s plans with respect to facilities expgriwithin the next 12 months are presented below.

Scheduled for Scheduled for

1H16 2H16 2016 . .
repayment  refinaning
Eurobond $400m 362 - 362 362
Term loan - 40 40 40
European Investment Bank ("EIB")Term loan 22 22 44 44 -
Bond loan €400m 225 - 225 - 225
Total 609 62 671 446 225

During 2015 the Group generated positive operatiash flows (EBITDA adjusted for inventory impactdan
one-offs less capital expenditure and interest mays) of €392 million. This has helped the Growfntrease
its cash reserves available for the repayment afidomaturing during the next 12 months. Existingrawn
available credit facilities and the launching dfStand By Facility” which will be put in place ovéne coming
months, combined with positive cash generationgebgal during 2016, will provide the necessary haeaar for
the cover of obligations falling due over the n&&tmonths.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialilitids and net-settled derivative financial liabéds into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remainpegiod at the statement of financial position t@ th
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosdtiértable are the contractual cash flows.

Less than 1 Between 1l and: Between:Z Ower 5

year years andb5 years years
31 December 2015
Borrowings 1.755.501 600.184 1.059.772 67.653
Finance lease liabilities 921 940 2.525 1.951
Derivative financial instruments 34.814 - - -
Trade and other payables 2.754.524 - - -
31 December 2014
Borrowings 1.319.126 507.702 1.433.120 116.016
Finance lease liabilities 1.010 921 2.575 2.246
Derivative financial instruments 60.087 - - -
Trade and other payables 2.629.615 - - -

The amounts included as loans in the table aboveotl@orrespond to the balance sheet amounts gsatke
contractual (undiscounted) cash flows, which inelgdpital and interest.

Trade and other payables do not correspond to #fente sheet amounts as they include only financial
liabilities.

The Heads of agreement that was executed with NiQJ@anuary 2016 is not reflected in the analyssvak{see
Note 15).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objective with respect to capital dmoe, which includes both equity and debt fundiiggto
safeguard its ability to continue as a going com@ard to have in place an optimal capital structtom a cost
perspective.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struefuthe Group may adjust the amount of dividendsl pai
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issueshares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Consistent with the industry convention, the Grangnitors capital structure and indebtedness leonlshe
basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculatsdnet debt divided by total capital employed. Nebt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “curremd non-current borrowings” as shown in the statenoé
financial position) less “Cash & cash equivalentsid, “Available for Sale financial assets”. Totalpial
employed is calculated as “Total Equity” as showihie statement of financial position plus net debt

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2015 and 2014 agfollows:

As at
31 December 201 31 December 2014

Total Borrowings (Note 16) 3.230.987 2.989.640
Less: Cash, Cash Equivalents and restricted déste (L2) (2.108.364) (1.847.842)
Less: Available for sale financial assets (No®) 3. (523) (1.547)
Net debt 1.122.100 1.140.249
Total Equity 1.790.270 1.728.546
Total Capital Employed 2.912.370 2.868.795
Gearing ratio 39% 40%

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instrumentsiedrat fair value, by valuation method. The differkevels are
defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets feniital assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included withineleV that are observable for the asset or liability
either directly (that is, as prices) or indiredtlyat is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not lthgm observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Company’s assedsliabilities that are measured at fair value aC&cember
2015:

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
Assets

Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - -
Available for sale financial assets 523 - - 523

52¢ - - 523
Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - 34.814 - 34.814
- 34.81¢ - 34.81¢
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The following table presents the Group’s assets |@fdities that are measured at fair value atCBcember
2014:
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 balance
Assets

Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - -
Available for sale financial assets 1.547 - - 1.547

1.547 - - 1.547
Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - 60.087 - 60.087
- 60.087 - 60.087

The fair value of financial instruments traded ativee markets is based on quoted market pricekeabalance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if guptEes are readily and regularly available frameachange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, regulatory agency and those prices represent laahh
regularly occurring market transactions on an aflengith basis. These instruments are includedviel t&.

The fair value of financial instruments that ar¢ traded in an active market (for example, overdbenter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation téghes. These valuation techniques maximise the afise
observable market data where it is available amyg as little as possible on entity specific estiesatlf all
significant inputs required to fair value an instent are observable, the instrument is includdeviel 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not dd®n observable market data, the instrument laded in level
3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value finalnoistruments include:
e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similatruments.

e The fair value of commodity swaps is calculatedh@spresent value of the estimated future cashsflow
based on observable yield curves.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 Dec@®bé, there were no transfers between levels.

The fair value of Euro and US$ denominated Euroboasl at 31 December 2015 was €1.110 million (31
December 2014: €1.059 million), compared to itskwalue of €1.161 million (31 December 2014: €1.133
million). The fair value of the remaining borrowmgpproximates their carrying value, as the effsfct
discounting is insignificant. The fair values ofrtmwings are within level 2 of the fair value hisrhy.

The fair value of the following financial assetsldiabilities approximate their carrying amount:

e Trade and other receivables
e Cash and cash equivalents
e Trade and other payables

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluateldare based on historical experience as adjdsted
current market conditions and other factors, iniclgdexpectations of future events that are beliet@de
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions congdferfuture. The resulting accounting estimatdg by
definition, seldom equal the related actual resdlte estimates and assumptions that have a signifrisk of
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causing a material adjustment to the carrying ansoahassets and liabilities within the next finmhyear are
addressed below.

(&) Income taxes

Estimates are required in determining the providmrnincome taxes that the Group is subjected tdifierent
jurisdictions. This requires significant judgemehhere are some transactions and calculations fachathe
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Graapognises liabilities for anticipated tax issuesdud on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be didere the final tax outcome of these matters idht from
the amounts that were initially recorded, suchedéhces will impact the income tax and deferredptaxisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

(b) Provision for environmental restoration

The Group operates in the oil industry with itsnpipal activities being that of exploration and gwotion of
hydrocarbons, refining of crude oil and sale of mibducts, and the production and trading of pékeodcal
products. Environmental damage caused by suchades may require the Group to incur restoraticscto
comply with the regulations in the various jurig@ios in which the Group operates, and to settielagal or
constructive obligation. Analysis and estimatespdgormed by the Group together with its technaoad legal
advisers, in order to determine the probabilityjitig and amount involved with probable requiredflout of

resources. Estimated restoration costs, for whisbulsements are determined to be probable, aogmsed as
a provision in the Group’s financial statements.eWithe final determination of such obligation antsutiffers
from the recognised provisions, the Group’s statgroécomprehensive income is impacted.

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill, non-financial @ssand investments

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has saffeany impairment, in accordance with its accaunti
policies (Note 2.8). Additionally, if certain inditons emerge, the Group may test also non-finhisisets
(Note 2.10) and investments (Note 2.11.5) for gdesmpairment. The recoverable amounts of caslergging

units are determined based on value-in-use calookat Significant judgement is involved in managatise

determination of these estimates.

(d) Fair value of derivatives and other financial ingtnents

The fair value of financial instruments that ard¢ traded in an active market (for example, overdbanter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation téghes. The Group uses its judgement to select i@tyanf
methods and make assumptions that are mainly lmsetarket conditions existing at the end of eagoring
period.

(e) Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations dependa number of factors that are determined oacaunarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumsptiged in determining the net cost / (income) famgons
include the discount rate. Any changes in these&imaggons will impact the carrying amount of pension
obligations. The Group determines the appropriédeodint rate at the end of each year. This isnterést rate
that should be used to determine the present wdlestimated future cash outflows expected to lpeired to
settle the pension obligations. In determiningappropriate discount rate, the Group considerintieeest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denomithdtethe currency and jurisdiction in which the bts will

be paid, and that have terms to maturity approxirgahe terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations aasetl in part on current market conditions. Adddion
information is disclosed in Note 18.

(f) Provisions for legal claims

The Group has a number of legal claims pendingnagéi. Management uses its judgement to assedikéhe
outcome of these claims and if it is more likelprhnot that the Group will lose a claim, then avggion is
made. Provisions for legal claims, if required, ame@asured at the present value of management'ssbgstate
of the expenditure required to settle the presbligation at the end of the reporting period.
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5 Segment information

All critical operating decisions are made by theo@r's Executive Committee, which reviews the Greup’
internal reporting in order to assess performanee allocate resources. Management has determired th
operating segments based on these reports. The itemmonsiders the business from a number of measu
which may vary depending on the nature and evaiutiba business segment by taking into accountittie
profile, cash flow, product and market consideraionformation provided to the committee is meadun a
manner consistent with that of the financial statets.

Information on the revenue and profit regarding@reup’s operating segments is presented below:

For the year ended
Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Sales

Refining 6.644.424 8.818.333
Marketing 2.712.444 3.220.210
Exploration & Production - 186
Petro-chemicals 263.403 322.205
Gas & Power 1.705 1.634
Other Segments 15.880 12.792
Inter-Segmel (2.334.917 (2.896.916
Total 7.302.939 9.478.444

Operating profit / (loss)

Refining 116.723 (371.333)
Marketing 55.571 27.284
Exploration & Production (4.690) (5.792)
Petro-chemicals 83.578 63.673
Gas & Power (6.201) 685
Other Segmen 262 (3.429

Total 245.244 (288.912)
Currency exchange gains/ (losses) 26 (26.753) (9.198)
Share of profit of investments in associates amt jenture 8 21.518 28.245
Finance (expense)/income - net 25 (201.045) (215.030)
Profit / (loss) before income ta 38.964 (484.895)
Income tax (expense) / credit 27 6.063 116.305
(Income) / loss applicable to non-controlling ietsts 1.657 3.298
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the paren 46.68¢ (365.292

Inter-segment sales primarily relate to sales fthenrefining segment to the other operating segsnand are

carried out at arm’s length.
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The segment assets and liabilities at 31 DecentiiEs and 2014 are as follows:

As at

31 December 201 31 December 201
Total Asset:
Refining 6.424.209 6.203.265
Marketing 1.316.248 1.237.633
Exploration & Production 8.602 8.268
Petro-chemicals 310.833 250.927
Gas & Power 670.355 686.885
Other Segments 1.260.858 1.243.036
Inter-Segment (1.962.522) (1.910.727)
Total 8.028.58. 7.719.28:
Total Liabilities
Refining 5.115.315 4.866.416
Marketing 715.217 737.379
Exploration & Production 11.909 11.351
Petro-chemicals 64.175 58.199
Gas & Power 3.475 3.510
Other Segments 1.238.035 1.279.511
Inter-Segment (909.813) (965.624)
Total 6.238.31. 5.990.74.

“Other Segments” include Group entities which

pdavitreasury, consulting and engineering services.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Assets
Plant & Motor Furniture  Under Con-
Land Buildings  Machinery wehicles and fixtures struction Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2014 287.246 867.134 4.227.744 87.158 3.341 128.608 5.741.231
Additions 395 2.749 12.285 2.632 7.899 108.153 134.113
Capitalised projects - 9.583 109.957 27 623 (120.190) -
Disposals (438) (2.096) (1.239) (230) (199) (316) (4.518)
Currency translation differences (1.134) (1.734) (382) - 2 (82) (3.330)
Transfers and other movements 211 162 929 - 276 (13.801) 12.22Q)
As at 31 December 2014 286.280 875.798  4.349.294 89.587151.942 102.372  5.855.273
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 January 2014 - 350.911 1.753.644 49.470 124.087 - 2.278.112
Charge for the year - 30.646 139.250 4.443 7.901 - 182.240
Disposals - (1.965) (1.150) (223) (208) - (3.546)
Currency translation differences - (454) (180) - 4 - (630)
Transfers and other movements - (9) 934 2 - - 927
As at 31 December 2014 - 379.129  1.892.498 53.692 131.784 - 2.457.103
Net Book Value at 31 December 2014 286.280 496.669  2.456.796 35.895 20.158 102.372  3.398.170
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 286.280 875.798 4.349.294 89.587 1.9582 102.372 5.855.273
Additions 16 3.167 10.810 1777 7.926 139.898 163.594
Capitalised projects - 11.392 159.568 64 725  (171.749) -
Disposals 6] (927) (3.329) (706) (448) (70) (5.481)
Currency translation differences (114) (207) (140) %) 81 5) (450)
Transfers and other movements 386 3 10.534 - (1) (6.708) 2144
As at 31 December 2015 286.567 889.226  4.526.737 90.720160.162 63.738 6.017.150
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 January 2015 - 379.129 1.892.498 53.692 131.784 - 2.457.103
Charge for the year - 30.381 138.174 4.058 7.256 - 179.869
Disposals - (499) (2.510) (706) (391) - (4.106)
Currency translation differences - (79) (79) (%) (5) - 516
Transfers and other movements - (17) (701) - (103) - (821)
As at 31 December 2015 - 408.915 2.027.382 57.042 138.541 - 2.631.880
Net Book Value at 31 December 2015 286.567 480.311 2.499.355 33.678 21.621 63.738 3.385.270

(1) The Group has not pledged any property, plant gugenent as security for borrowings.

(2) During 2015 an amount of €2 million (2014: €2 noill) in respect of interest has been capitalisetimvit
Assets Under Construction relating to the refineggment, at an average borrowing rate of 5,06%
(2014:6,19%)

(3) ‘Transfers and other movements’ in assets undestaggtion mainly relate to the transfer of sparggor
the upgraded Elefsina units within inventoriesaotordance with the amended IAS 16, as they concern
consumables. Transfers of completed IT projecistamgible assets are also included therein.

(4) Depreciation expense of €179,9 million (2014: €28&jllion) and amortisation expense of €19 million
(2014: €22,7 million) are allocated in the followifines of the Consolidated Statement of Compreakiens
Income:

o Cost of Sales €133,2 million (2014: €132,6 million)

e Selling and distribution expenses €55,7 million20€56,7 million),

e Administration expenses €9,7 million (2014: €14 ,8iom), and

e Exploration and development expenses €0,3 millz14: €1,3 million).
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7 Intangible assets
Retail Service
Stations Usag« Computer Licences &
Goodwill Rights  software Rights Other Total

Cost

As at 1 January 2014 133.914 51.339 87.072 37.962 74516  384.803

Additions - 266 1.051 397 53 1.767

Disposals - (166) - - (39) (205)

Currency translation differences and other movement - (74) 8.459 410 (270) 8.525

As at 31 December 2014 133.914 51.365 96.582 38.769  6GH2 394.890

Accumulated Amortisation

As at 1 January 2014 71.829 22.258 77.863 24.670 44342  240.962

Charge for the year - 3.839 8.584 2.590 7.677 22.690

Disposals - (94) - - (38) (132)

Currency translation differences and other movement - 135 (730) - (13) (608)

As at 31 December 2014 71.829 26.138 85.717 27.260 .96 262.912

Net Book Value at 31 December 20: 62.085 25.227 10.865 11.509 22.292 131.978

Cost

As at 1 January 2015 133.914 51.365 96.582 38.769 74.260  394.890

Additions - 421 1.089 16 133 1.659

Disposals - (128) - ® - (129)

Currency translation differences and other movement - (1.382) 3.034 1.232 (581) 2.303

As at 31 December 2015 133.914 50.276 _ 100.705 40.016  8TA. 398.723

Accumulated Amortisation

As at 1 January 2015 71.829 26.138 85.717 27.260 51.968  262.912

Charge for the year - 3.722 5.486 2.021 7.802 19.031

Disposals - (62) - - - (62)

Currency translation differences and other movement - (779) (100) 779 (120) (220)

As at 31 December 2015 71.829 29.019 91.103 30.060 99.65 281.661

Net Book Value at 31 December 2015 62.085 21.257 9.602 9.956 14.162 117.062

(1) The remaining amount of goodwill as at 31 Decen#iH5 relates to the unamortised goodwill arising on
the acquisition of Hellenic Petroleum Cyprus Ltd2®03 and of Jugopetrol AD in 2002, which are &dat
in line with the accounting policy in note 2.8. Gledll has been tested for impairment as at 31 Désgm
2015 using the value-in-use model. This calculatisas cash flow projections based on financial btglg
approved by management covering a five year per@ash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate thiats the forecasts in line with management bglief
based on GDP growth projections. Management detesrannual volume growth rate and gross margins
based on past performance and expectations fan#nket development. The discount rates used are pre
tax and reflect specific risks relating to opemasioThe results of the model show that the valuatmvers
the carrying amount of the goodwill, which amoutet€62 million as of 31 December 2015. A senskivit
analysis was performed to the key assumptions ursé¢ige model (discount rates and perpetuity growth
rates), in order to stress test the adequacy ofidhetion headroom. The sensitivity analysis rtesuin
recoverable values well in excess of the carryialge.

(2) Other intangible assets category primarily incluttesfair value of the contractual customer relalips
from the subsidiary acquired in December 2009 (& Heellas) which is amortized over the life of the
contracts. Furthermore, it includes rights of uskand in Serbia and Montenegro in cases wherd legal
framework does not allow outright ownership of restlate property.

(3) ‘Other movements’ mainly relate to completed ITteafe projects capitalised during 2015 and thus

transferred from assets under construction.
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8 Investments in associates and joint ventures

As at

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Beginning of the Year 682.425 691.501
Dividend income (18.289) (39.221)
Share of profit of investments in associates &tjgiantures 21.518 28.245
Share capital increase / (decrease) (18) 76
Impairment of investment (Note 24) (7.000) -
Gains/ (losses) on cash flow hedges through Other

Comprehensive Income - 2.484
Other movements - (660)
End of the year 678.637 682.425

a) Joint Ventures

The Group is active in power generation, trading aupply in Greece through its 50% shareholding in
Elpedison B.V., a joint venture entity with EDISONMernational. The Group consolidates Elpedison.Bi&ing
the equity method and as such Elpedison B.V. gafuppmpanies consolidated results, appear undeartSof
profit of investments in associates and joint vegdgliand its Net assets under the “Investment soAiates”.

Given the materiality of this activity for the Gmuthe table below summarises the key financialghef
Elpedison B.V. group which consolidates its 75,788tding in Elpedison S.A. (on 1/9/2015 ElpedisorwEn
S.A. absorbed Elpedison Energy S.A. and theretifeecompany’s name was changed to Elpedison S.A.

As at

Elpedison B.V. Group 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

(unaudited) (unaudited)
Statement of Financial Position
Non-Current Assets 336.445 376.013
Cash and Cash Equivalents 38.529 17.719
Other Current Assets 115.639 130.340
Total Asset: 490.61. 524.07:
Equity 115.475 156.161
Other Non-Current Liabilities 21.021 18.667
Short Term Borrowings 266.87( 275.28¢
Other Current Liabilities 87.247 73.954
Total Liabilities 375.138 367.910
Total Liabilities and Equity 490.61: 524.07:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Statement of Comprehensive Income (unaudited) (unaudited)
Revenue 194.958 212.579
EBITDA 19.48: 51.33(
Interest Income/(Expense) - net (18.914) 22.795
(Loss) / Profit beforeTax (31.810 1.70¢
Income Tax (2.844) 373
(Loss) / Profit after Tax (34.655) 2.081
(Loss) / Income accounted in Helpe Group (15.877) 85
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The Group’s share of profit / (loss) arising frota investment in the Elpedison B.V Group is accedrfor
based on unaudited results. Differences arisingvdx audited and unaudited results are incorpotiatede
following year’s results.

In October 2013, Elpedison Power refinanced its5€84llion loans (outstanding amount as of Octob@t 2
€296 million), through the issuance of new loan€2®6 million, maturing on September 2015 and Ingaa
one-year extension option that is subject to eaoddr's consent. Elpedison S.A. exerted its rightte loan
extensions until 30 September 2016 (extensions fefean amount of €268 million). The loans are yull
guaranteed on a pro rata basis by the sharehalfi&tpedison S.A.

Due to significant delays in the establishment lid hew Capacity / Flexibility Remuneration Mechamis
Elpedison S.A. has agreed with the lenders thataies will be repaid on maturity and that any jpexts from
LAGIE’s historical deficit will mandatorily repayokns. At the moment the Company has started diseisss
with its lenders on the refinancing of its loansiathare due on 30 September 2016. The Company’s
Management is confident that the loans will be sastully refinanced.

There are neither contingent liabilities nor commants relating to the group’s interest in ElpediBoyi.
Impairment of Investment in Elpedison B.V.

Management of Elpedison S.A. carried out an impairest according to the requirements of IAS 26¢ek on
the post-tax cash flows produced over the usefal dif the company. The recent and anticipated éutur
developments in the market and regulatory envirorirtghange in remuneration mechanisms, intensifinatf
competition) in which the company operates, wemsitered as indicators of impairment, as they caujshct
the future cash flows of its assets.

The valuation analysis considered Elpedison S.Aa &ingle cash generation unit (CGU). The analyss
carried out by identifying the recoverable valueaftie in use”) of the CGU. The estimation of théueain use
was performed through the application of the Disted Cash Flow Valuation Method. The discount rate
applied was estimated as the post-tax WeightedayeeCost of Capital (WACC).

In this framework, and taking into consideratiorl2@evelopments and 2016 expectations by Managefment
changes in the market and regulatory environmentmgairment provision of € 7 million was recordiedthe
carrying value of Elpedison B.V. in the consol@balance sheet of the Group as at 31 Decembér&tillan
impairment loss of the same amount was recognizélle consolidated statement of comprehensive iecasn
part of Other Income and Expenses (Note 24).

Note that the assumptions and scenarios used ahddge in the future, particularly in an environinen
characterized by high volatility. Relevant changesthe hypothesis retained e.g. in the annual Ibiéxy
remuneration and in discount rates, could havergract on the value in use of the assets.

b) Associates

The Group exercises significant influence in a nemif other entities, also accounted for by thdtgquethod.

DEPA Group

DEPA Group operates in the wholesale, trading,strassion, distribution and supply of natural gasisl
currently owned 65% by the HRADF (Hellenic Repulflissets Development Fund) and 35% by HELPE S.A.

Major entities that are consolidated in DEPA Grdugsides the parent company, are DESFA S.A. (full
consolidation, 100% - Administrator of the Natu@és System), and the Gas Distribution companigsitie
method, 51% stake in each company - EPA Attica,EERA Thessaloniki S.A., EPA Thessalia S.A.).
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The table below summarizes the key financials oPBEsroup:

As at
Public Natural Gas Corporation of Greece (DEPA) 31 Bcember 2015 31 December 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Statement of Financial Position
Non-Current Assets 2.387.215 2.386.441
Cash and Cash Equivalents 350.461 303.241
Other Current Assets 455.471 476.025
Total Assets 3.193.147 3.165.707
Equity 1.707.698 1.691.622
Long Term Borrowings 209.562 242.259
Other Non-Current Liabilities 931.548 944.311
Short Term Borrowings 32.697 32.697
Other Current Liabilities 311.642 254.818
Total Liabilities 1.485.449 1.474.085
Total Liabilities and Equity 3.193.147 3.165.707
As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue 938.790 1.088.030
EBITDA 140.751 144.493
Interest Income/(Expense) - net 1.442 16.919
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 75.305 97.358
Income Tax (9.001) (14.648)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 66.304 82.710
Income / (Loss) accounted in Helpe Group 23.206 30.337

The Group’s share of profit / (loss) arising frota investment in the Depa Group is accounted feethaon
unaudited results. Differences arising betweentaddind unaudited results are incorporated in dHeviing
year's results.

In 2015 the Group received dividends of €17,5 oillfrom the DEPA Group (2014: €38,6 million).
Sale of DESFA

On the 16 February 2012, HELPE and the HRADF (jpitite “Sellers”) agreed to launch a joint saleqass of
their shareholding in DEPA Group aiming to selltotal 100% of the supply and trading activities a&hd
shareholding of regional supply companies (DEPA.%#d EPAs) and 66% of the high pressure transmnissi
network (DESFA). This agreement was approved by PIEE EGM, dated 30 January 2012, and the decision
specifically requires that any such transactiom lvéilsubject to the approval of a new EGM.

The sales process resulted in three non-bindirgroffeceived on 5 November 2012 and at the fimgestone
binding offer for the purchase of 66% of DESFA sisdny SOCAR (Azerbaijan’s Oil and Gas National Cany).
SOCAR's final offer is for €400 million for 66% dESFA,; i.e. €212,1 million for HELPE's 35% effeativ
shareholding. Given that at present DESFA S.A. i§08% subsidiary of DEPA, in order to complete the
transaction, DESFA will be “unbundled” through ashdistribution (treated as capital reduction &Ha S.A.),

to the two existing shareholders/sellers (i.e. HEL3%% and HRADF 65%). Thus, once all approvalsftbe
competent authorities are received, SOCAR will B&Y6 directly from HELPE and 31% from HRADF.
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On 2 August 2013 the Board of Directors of HELPEsidered the offer for the sale of its 35% effexiivterest in

DESFA as acceptable, and called for an Extraordi@eneral Meeting of the shareholders of the Compan

approve the transaction. The EGM of the sharehsldéthe Company held on 2 September 2013 apprtheed
transaction.

Prior to the Board of Director's meeting, the poag day, on 1 August 2013 the board of directotdRADF had
unanimously accepted the final offer of SOCAR.

The Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) for the sa&6%f of DESFA’s share capital was signed by HRADF,
HELPE and SOCAR (Parties to the SPA) on 21 Decer2d&B. According to this SPA the rights and oblmyz

of the parties are conditional upon the occurraiagrtain events (Conditions) such as the mergarance of the
transaction by the EU or national competition aritles (as applicable) and the certification of BE#Sby the
Regulatory Authority for Energy of the Hellenic Regtic ("RAE") in accordance with article 65 of L0@1/2011
("Energy Law"). RAE issued its final certificatiaiecision on 29 September 2014. Notification oftthasaction to
DG for Competition of the European Commission tqub&ce on 1 October 2014. On 5 November 2014, the
European Commission opened an in depth investigaiibe extent of commitments which may be requicede
undertaken by SOCAR and the exact time requiredhierEuropean Commission to issue a clearanceiaiecis
cannot be controlled by the parties. On Jul{) 2015, the Parties to the SPA executed Addendur, My virtue

of which the long stop date of the SPA has beethdurextended to 21 December 2015; while on 16 Dbee
2015 Addendum No 3 was executed providing for adit@hal long stop date extension to 30 Septemibd62
Further to such agreement, the validity of the S@@#&rformance guarantee has been extended acdgrding

Although the parties undertake valid commitmentsrupigning of the SPA, the effectiveness of thalitytof the
provisions of the SPA (including the transfer oigs and the payment of the consideration) rensmihgect to
conditions, some of which lie beyond the controldiigent behaviour of the parties and, conseqyerttie
completion of the transaction remains suspendedlapends on the satisfaction of such conditions.

The Group consolidates DEPA on an equity basisthadcarrying value of the investment in the comsaéd
financial statements reflects HELPE's 35% sharehef net asset value of the DEPA group which aslat 3
December 2015 is €595 million. The cost of investira# the DEPA group in the financial statement$i&lPE
S.A is €237 million. The impact of the above trantiean on the Group financial statements will beed®ined on
the basis of the structure of the transaction (gsgnt a spin-off process is provided for in thé)séhd timing of
implementation.

Given that the transaction can only be completemhupceiving the approval of the relevant compedgithorities,
and given the timing of such approvals and the odlig process that is still to be concluded, DER®Up, as it
currently stands, continues to be accounted for iaollided in these consolidated financial statemers an
associate.

Other associates

In 2011, the Group participated with a 48% holdinghe setting-up of a new company, DMEP HoldCo, Ltd
through its subsidiary company Hellenic Petrolemternational A.G. DMEP HoldCo Ltd is incorporatedthe

UK and ultimately owns 100% of “OTSM S.A. Mainteranof Compulsory Stocks and Trading of Crude Oll
and Petroleum Products” (OTSM). OTSM is establistieder Greek law and is fully permitted to providede

oil and petroleum products stock keeping and mamagé services. The Group has delegated part of its
compulsory stock keeping obligations to OTSM, redgdts stock holding by approximately 407.000 Mif,a

fee calculated in line with the legal framework.

An analysis of the financial position and resultéhe@ Group’s major associates is set out below:

% interest As at
held 31 December 2015

Asset: Liabilities Revenues Profit after tax
Spata Aviation Fuel Company S.A. 33% 4.621 3.235 5.765 A78
ELPE THRAKI 25% 8 10 - (41)
EAKAA 50% 13.603 4.422 3.169 951
DMEP Holdco 48% 206.441 169.483 845.977 34.527
BIODIESEL 25% 192 29 - 2)
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% interest As at
held 31 December 2014

Asset: Liabilities Revenues Profit after tax
Spata Aviation Fuel Company S.A. 33% 3.805 2.504 4.776 .013
ELPE THRAKI 25% 69 4 - (16)
EAKAA 50% 14.53( 5.42¢ 2.61¢ 57¢
DMEP Holdco 48% 223.88. 221.45: 808.65¢ (4.184
BIODIESEL 25% 357 79 1.283 12

There are neither contingent liabilities nor conmants relating to the group’s interest in its aEdes.

¢) Joint operations

The Group participates in the following joint optwas with other third parties relating to explaoat and
production of hydrocarbons in Greece and abroad:

e Edison International SpA (Greece, Patraikos G#Btroceltic Resources Plc, which participated & th
joint operation for the year 2015, transferredights to both Edison and HELPE Patraikos withid @0
(see Note 23).

e Calfrac well services (Greece, Sea of Thrace caimes

9 Loans, Advances & Long Term assets

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Loans and advances 37.587 37.288
Other long term assets 47.435 49.410
Total 85.022 86.698

Loans and advances relate primarily to mercharaiséit extended to third parties as part of thaireetwork
expansion and are non-interest bearing. They aldade trade receivables due in more than oneggarresult
of settlement arrangements.

Other long term assets include non-interest begragnents made to secure long term retail netwotk ae
amortised over the remaining life of the relatingnitacts of the petrol stations locations. In additthey
include other non-interest bearing prepaymentsig term nature.

The balances included in the above categories & december 2015 are discounted at a rate of Th4(2
5%).

10 Inventories

As at

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Crude ol 180.149 118.519
Refined products and semi-finished products 400.301 22.452
Petrochemicals 22.286 27.104
Consumable materials and other spare parts 83.705 85279.
- Less: Provision for consumables and spare parts (24.416) (10.314)
Total 662.025 637.613
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Hellenic Petroleum SA is obliged to keep crude anild refined product stocks in order to fulfil thé& E
requirement for compulsory Stock obligations (99dstock directive), as legislated by Greek Law432602.

The cost of inventories recognised as an experssénatuded in “Cost of sales” amounted to €5,7idnill(2014:
€8,5 billion). It should be highlighted that duettee decrease of crude oil and oil product prioasng the last
quarter of 2015, which also continued after theryaal, the Group has reported a loss arising fraventory
valuation which is reflected in a write-down of thear end values. Write-down of inventories to mreetlisable
value as at 31 December 2015 amounted to €23 mi(&D14 — €104 million). This was recognised as an
expense in the year ended 31 December 2015 andlattin ‘Cost of Sales’ in the statement of compnsive
income. Management has estimated the negative tnopettie results of the Group from the declinerotie oil
and product prices during the year and includezbst of sales at approx. € 300 million (2014:€ 48llion).

11 Trade and other receivables

As at

31 December 201 31 December 2014
Trade receivables 504.98: 481.36(
- Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (211.349 (185.114
Trade receivables ne 293.63¢ 296.24¢
Other receivables 471.00: 421.60:
- Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (34.005 (30.286
Other receivables ne 436.99¢ 391.31¢
Deferred charges and prepayments 21.50¢ 20.66!
Total 752.142 708.227

As part of its working capital management the Gratifises factoring facilities to accelerate thdlection of
cash from its customers in Greece. Non-recourderfag, is excluded from balances shown above.

Other receivables include balances in respect off Viscome tax prepayment, advances to suppliers and
advances to personnel. This balance as at 31 Dexe?li5 includes an amount of €54m (31 Decembed:201
€54m) of VAT approved refunds which has been wilthii®y the customs office due to a dispute relatimg
stock shortages. The Group has filed a specifiallebjection and claims against this action andeetgto fully
recover this amount following the conclusion of ttedevant legal proceedings (Note 31). The faiugal of
trade and other receivables approximate their scagrgmount.

The table below shows the segregation of tradevaiskes:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Total trade receivables 504.984 481.360
Amounts included above which are past due :
a) Past due, not impaired receivables 195.731 130.872
b) Past due, doubtful & impaired receivables baganc 211.349 185.114

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgrtlate is the fair value of each class of receaféntioned
above. Provision is made for receivables that angbtful of collection and have been assessed gt will
result in a loss, net of any respective securiitesollaterals obtained.
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As of 31 December 2015, the overdue days of trageivables that were past due but not impairedaare
follows:

As at
31 December 201 31 December 2014
Up to 30 days 66.498 59.467
30 - 90 days 21.251 25.838
Over 90 days 107.982 45.567
Total 195.731 130.872

The overdue days of trade receivables that weredougsand impaired are as follows:

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Up to 30 days 15.392 4931
30 - 90 days 48E 15C
Over 90 days 195.472 180.033
Total 211.349 185.114

It was assessed that the portion of the doubtfokivables not provided for could be recovered thhou
settlements, legal actions and the securing oftiaddil collaterals.

The movement in the provision for impairment offeaeceivables is set out below.

As at
31 December 201 31 December 2014
Balance at 1 January 185.114 170.346
Charged / (credited) to the income statement:
- Additional provisions 27.35( 16.87:
- Unused amounts reversed (920) (1.618)
- Receivables written off during the year asaliectible (195) (486)
Balance at 31 December 211.349 185.114

The movement in the provision for impairment hasrbmcluded in Selling & Distribution costs in teatement
of comprehensive income.

12 Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201

Cash at Bank and in Hand 1.252.808 952.127
Short term bank deposits 700.000 695.715
Cash and Cash Equivalent 1.952.80: 1.647.84.
Restricted Cas 155.55¢ 200.00(
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 208.364 1.847.842

Restricted cash relates to the proceeds of a loaoluded between Hellenic Petroleum S.A and Pir&ars,
which have been provided as a guarantee to thepBarolnvestment Bank in relation to the CompangZ8CE
million Facility Agreement B with the latter.
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The outstanding balance under the EIB Facility &gnent B as at 31 December 2015 was €144 million, in
accordance with the amortization schedule, whilstdutstanding balance of the Piraeus loan as Be8tmber
2015 was €156 million. This is expected to be redu €144 million in the following months. The galatee
matured on 15 June 2015 and was renewed for atiaddiyear.

The effect of the loan and the deposit is a grassmof the Statement of Financial Position withefiect to the
Net Debt position and Net Equity of the Group.

The balance of US Dollars included in Cash at basikat 31 December 2015 was $ 920.895 (euro equotvale
€845.866). The respective amount for the periodedn8ll December 2014 was $ 909.355 (euro equivalent
€748.994).

The weighted average effective interest rate #iseateporting date on cash and cash equivalents was

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201

Euro 0,21% 0,36%
usD 0,80% 0,80%

13 Share capital

Number of
Shares
(authorised Share Share
and issued) Capital premium Total
As at 1 January & 31 December 2014 305.635.185 666.285  353.796 1.020.081
As at 31 December 2015 305.635.185  666.285  353.796 1.020.081

All ordinary shares were authorised, issued ang fidid. The nominal value of each ordinary sharé2.18 (31
December 2014: €2.18).

Share options

During the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Hellerfietroleum S.A. held on 25 May 2005, a share option
scheme was approved, with the intention to link nbenber of share options granted to management théth
results and performance of the Company. Subseq@Ms have approved and granted the share optidms. T
vesting period is 1 November to 5 December of #ary 2014 — 2018.

Share options outstanding at the year-end haviliogving expiry date and exercise prices:

Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
Date Date Date Price No. of share options as at
5 December € per share 31 December 201 31 December 201
2009 2011-15 2015 7,62 - 1.616.054
2012 2014-18 2018 4,52 1.479.933 1.479.933
Total 1.479.933 3.095.987

No stock options have been exercised during 201dudng the previous year, due to the negativeticalahip
between the exercise price and the share marlat guring the respective vesting periods.
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Movements in the humber of share options outstandimd their related weighted average exercise peace as
follows:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Average Exercis Average Exercis

Price in € per share OptiongPrice in € per share Options
At 1 January 6,14 3.095.987 6,62 3.435.548
Granted - - - -
Exercised - - - -
Lapsed 7,62  (1.616.054) 11,01 (339.561)
At 31 Decembe 4,52 1.479.93: 6,14 3.095.98'

The value of lapsed stock options that were traresfleto retained earnings in 2015 is €2,9 milli@d¥4: 0,3
million).

14 Reserves

Share-base(
Statutory Special Hedging payment Tax free Other
reserve reserves reserve reserve reserves reserves Total

Balance at 1 January 2014 118.668 98.420 3.893 3.664 351.322 (9.864) 566.103
Cash flow hedges (Note 21)

- Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow hedge - - (42.289) - - - (42.289)

- Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges i
comprehensive incor - - (3.586) - - - (3.586)
Share-based payments (Note 13) - - - (24) - - (24)
Distribution of tax-free reserv - - - - (64.376 - (64.376
Transfer of tax on distributed reserves - - - - (15.101) - (15.101)
Fair value gains / (losses) on available-for-salarfcial
assets - - - - - 330 330
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengiam: - - - - - (6.179 (6.179
Currency translation differences and other movement - - - - - 135 135
Balance at 31 December 2014 118.668 98.420 (41.982) 48.6 271.845 (15.578) 435.013
Cash flow hedges (Note 21)

- Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow hedge - - (4.802) - - - (4.802)

- Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges i
comprehensive income - - 24.548 - - - 24.548
Share-based payments (Note 13) - - - (2.893) - - (2.893)
Transfers from Reserves to Retained Eart - - - - (8.798 (148, (8.946'
Fair value gains / (losses) on available-for-salarfcial
asset 172 (172)
Fair value gains / (losses) on available-for-salarfcial
assets reclassified to Profit or L - - - - - (6) (6)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengiams - - - - - 1.619 1.619
Currency translation differences and other movesent - - - - - (632) (632)
Balance at 31 December 2015 118.668 98.420 (22.236) 747 263.047 (14.917) 443.729

Statutory reserves

Under Greek law, corporations are required to feares minimum of 5% of their annual net profit aflected in
their statutory books to a statutory reserve wtdh reserve equals one third of outstanding stegpital. This
reserve cannot be distributed during the existesfcthe corporation, but can be used to offset actatad
losses.

Special reserves

Special reserves primarily relate to reserves ragisiom tax revaluations which have been includedhe
holding company accounts in accordance with theveeit legislation in prior years. Where considered
appropriate deferred tax provisions are booke@spect of these reserves.
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Tax free reserves
These include:

0] Tax deferred reserves - retained earnings that havdeen taxed with the prevailing corporate ineom
tax rate as allowed by Greek law under variousuustat Certain of these retained earnings will becom
liable to tax at the rate prevailing at the timadwtribution to shareholders or conversion to sleapital.

(i)  Partially taxed reserves - retained earnings that lbeen taxed at a rate less than the corporatattaas
allowed by Greek law. Certain of these retainediegs will be subject to the remaining tax up te th
corporate tax rate prevailing at the time of disition to shareholders or conversion to share a&lapit

In 2014 part of these reserves were distributeshtmeholders, in line with law 4172/2013.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record gains oe$oss derivatives that are designated and quadifyaah flow
hedges and that are recognised in other compreteeimsiome, as described in Note 21.

Amounts are reclassified to profit or loss whendhkeociated hedged transaction affects profitgs.lo

15 Trade and other payables

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Trade payables 2.626.459 2.529.072
Accrued Expenses & Deferred Income 73.535 58.830
Other payables 95.384 91.297
Total 2.795.378 2.679.199

Trade payables comprise amounts payable or acénuegbpect of supplies of crude oil, products, cadity
derivative contracts and services. Since the intjposof capital controls on 28 June 2015 in Greegen credit
from suppliers has reduced materially.

Trade payables, as at 31 December 2015 and 31 bec&14, include overdue amounts in respect afecnil
imports from Iran which were received between Ddoen2011 and March 2012 as part of a long termraont
with NIOC. Despite repeated attempts to settlepdngment for these cargoes through the internatibaaking
system between January and June 2012, it was setly® to do so. This was due to the fact that magmto
Iranian banks and state entities were not accdptegrocessing by the International banking systema to US
and International sanctions. After 30 June 2013leHie Petroleum was prohibited to effect paymenotsliOC
by virtue of EU sanctions (Council Regulation (B\). 267/2012 of 23 March 2012). The Group duly fiedi
its supplier of this restriction on payments anel ittability to accept further crude oil cargoes emtthe contract,
which is due to the EU sanctions posing legal aairs outside its control. As a result no deligerof Iranian
crude oil or payments have taken place post 30 20b2, which was the EU imposed deadline.

On 18 October 2015, by Decision (CFSP) 2015/1868, Gouncil of the European Union (EU) decided to
terminate implementation of all Union economic dinthncial sanctions against Iran, taking into actou
UNSCR 2231 (2015) and Annex B to UNSCR 2231 (201&imultaneously with the IAEA-verified
implementation by Iran of agreed nuclear-relatecsnees. On 16 January 2016 (“Implementation Ddyy),
Decision (CFSP) 2016/37, the Council decided theti§lon (CFSP) 2015/1863 shall apply from that d@te
the same date U.S and other International Restidfleasures were also partially lifted. In lighttbé above
developments, Hellenic Petroleum and NIOC execuateldeads of agreement on 22 January 2016 for the
recommencement of their commercial relationshiptiier supply of crude and for the settlement ofdherdue
amounts. Implementation of the agreement will befulh compliance with prevailing EU and internatan
framework, including surviving sanctions. The impaé the agreement on the financial statements bell
reflected in the next reporting period.
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Where deemed beneficial to the Group, in orderdoieve better terms (such as better pricing, highedit
limits, longer payment terms), the Group provideersterm letters of credit or guarantee for thgnpant of
liabilities arising from trade creditors, makingeusf its existing credit lines with its banks. Tetextent these
liabilities materialise before the balance sheét dhey are included in the balance under tradditars.

Other payables include amounts in respect of pbgmal other staff related costs, social securitigations and

sundry taxes.

Accrued expenses and deferred income include timaated cost of the CO2 emission rights requiredeurthe
corresponding environmental legislation amountm@§16 million (2014: €5 million).

16 Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
Bank borrowings

Eurobonds

Finance leases

Total non-current borrowings

Current borrowings

Short term bank borrowings

Eurobonds

Current portion of long-term bank borrowings
Finance leases - current portion

Total current borrowings

Total borrowings

Non-current borrowings mature as follows:

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
Over 5 years

The weighted average effective interest marginaar®llows:

Bank Borrowings

Short-term

- Floating Euribor + margin

- Floating Belibor + margin

- Floating Sofibor + margin

- Central Bank Bills + margin
- Fixed coupon

Long-term
- Floating Euribor + margin
- Fixed coupon

Currency

Euro

Serbian Dinar
Bulgarian Lev
FYROM Dinar
US Dollar

Euro
Euro

As at

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

31 December 2015

5,30%
8,94%
5,75%
5,54%

4,63%

4,09%
6,91%

794.634 675.036
799.014 1.132.598
4.306 4.361
1.597.954 1.811.995
1.226.063 1.132.298
361.641 -
44.796 44.782
533 565
1.633.033 1.177.645
3.230.987 2.989.640
As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
529.263 411.260
1.002.026 1.289.624
66.665 111.111
1.597.954 1.811.995
As at

31 Decemb@n14

6,20%
12@5
6,05%
5,41%
4,63%

4,27%
6,91%

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(50) / (65)



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordande IWRS
for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowingsdeerominated in the following currencies:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Euro 2.774.371 2.571.354
US Dollar 361.641 327.921
Serbian Dinar 23.460 28.049
Bulgarian Lev 55.678 46.449
FYROM Dinar 15.837 15.867
Total borrowings 3.230.98 2.989.64!

The Group has centralised treasury operations wtachdinate and control the funding and cash managé
activities of all group companies. Within this frawork, Hellenic Petroleum Finance plc (HPF) waslad&hed
in November 2005 in the U.K. as a wholly-owned sdibsy of Hellenic Petroleum S.A. to act as thetcan
treasury vehicle of the Hellenic Petroleum Group.

Gross borrowings of the Group by maturity as aD&tember 2015 and 31 December 2014 are summarised o

the table below (amounts in € million):
Balance as at

Company Maturity 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

la. Syndicated credit facility €40 million HPF plc 1 2016 4C 39
1b. Syndicated credit facility €10 million HPF plc 12018 1C 10
1c. Syndicated bond loan €350 million HP SA Jul 2018 341 338
2. Bond loan €400 million HP SA Jun 2016 22¢ 225
3. Bond loan €200 million HP SA Jan 2018 19¢ -
4. European Investment Bank ("EIB")Term loan HP SA n 2022 28¢ 333
5. Eurobond €500m HPF plc May 2017 48¢ 489
6. Eurobond $400m HPF plc May 2016 362 328
7. Eurobond €325m HPF plc Jul 2019 314 316
8. Bilateral lines Various Various 961 907
9. Finance leas Various Various 5 5
Total 3.231 2.99(

Refer to ‘Liquidity Risk Management’ (Note 3.1c)rfan analysis of the Group’s plans regarding thodifies
falling due in 2016.

1. Term loans

In January 2013, the Group concluded two three-gestit facilities with identical terms and condiis with a
syndicate of Greek and international banks for taltamount of €605 million and a gradual amortizati
schedule. In July 2014, the Group proceeded witlolantary early repayment and partial refinancaighe

facilities. As a result, the Group voluntarily régh@ notional loan amount of €152 million and cangd two
new credit facilities with similar terms and coralits as follows:

(1a-1b) HPF concluded a €50 million syndicated itréatility guaranteed by Hellenic Petroleum S.AheT
facility has a €40 million tranche maturing in J@§16 and a €10 million tranche maturing in July&0

(1c) Hellenic Petroleum S.A. concluded a €350 worillsyndicated bond loan credit facility guarantegdHPF
maturing in July 2018.

2. Bond Loan €400 million

In June 2014, Hellenic Petroleum S.A. extended rttzurity date of a €400 million syndicated bondnloa
agreement from December 2014 to 30 December 20ttbangix month extension option, achieving at thme
time improvements in cost and general terms andlitons. In September 2015 Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
extended the maturity date to June 2016.
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3. Committed 3 year credit facility €200 million

In line with the Group’s risk management strategyncrease the percentage of committed term cfadilities,
Hellenic Petroleum S.A. concluded a €200 millionmeoitted credit facility in January 2015, with a ¢erof 3
years, with National Bank of Greece.

4. EIB Term loans

On 26 May 2010, Hellenic Petroleum S.A. signed tesn agreements (Facilities A and B) with the Eeap
Investment Bank for a total amount of €400 millig@200 million each). The purpose of the loans was
finance part of the investment program relatingtte upgrade of the Elefsina Refinery. Both loanseha
maturity of twelve years with amortization begingiim December 2013 and similar terms and conditions
Facility B is credit enhanced by a commercial bguolarantee (see note 15). This is normal practiceEf8
lending particularly during the construction phaddarge projects. Total repayments on both logngai31
December 2015 amounted to € 111 million.

5. Eurobond €500m

In May 2013, the Group issued a €500 million foeay Eurobond, with an 8% annual coupon, maturingary
2017. The Notes, which were issued by Hellenic dletim Finance Plc and are guaranteed by Hellenic
Petroleum S.A., are redeemable at maturity andistesl on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

6. Eurobond $400m

In May 2014 the Group issued a $400 million two+yEBarobond, with a 4,625% annual coupon, maturmg i
May 2016. The Notes, which were issued by Helldrtroleum Finance Plc and are guaranteed by Helleni
Petroleum S.A., are redeemable at maturity andistesl on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

7. Eurobond €325m

In July 2014 the Group issued a €325 million fiveay Eurobond, with a 5,25% annual coupon, maturintuly
2019. The Notes, which were issued by Hellenic dd@tim Finance Plc and are guaranteed by Hellenic
Petroleum S.A., are redeemable at the option ofdtger in July 2017 and are listed on the Luxemipp@tock
Exchange.

During the period ended 31 December 2015, Hellétdtroleum Finance Plc proceeded with open market
purchases and subsequent cancellation of €6,9mitf the €500 million Notes maturing in May 20%3,1
million of the €325 million Notes maturing in JuB019 and €5,2 million ($5,8 million) of the $400Iimin
Notes maturing in May 2016. The profit from the npearket purchases amounted to €1,3 million.

8. Bilateral lines

The Group companies have credit facilities withisas banks in place, for general corporate purpobesse
mainly relate to short-term loans of the parent pany Hellenic Petroleum S.A., which have been aceland
renewed as necessary over the past few years.

Certain medium term credit agreements that the @ims concluded, include financial covenants, nydioi
the maintenance of certain ratios such as: “Nett/B&ITDA", “EBITDA/Net Interest” and “Net Debt/Net
Worth”. Management monitors the performance ofGneup to ensure compliance with the above covenants

Finance leases are analysed as follows:

As at
Obligations under finance leases 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Within 1 year 532 56&
Between 1 and 2 years 601 532
Between 2 and 5 years 1.94¢ 1.81%
After 5 years 1.75¢ 2.01Z
Total lease payments 4.839 4,926
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17 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areedfighen there is a legally enforceable right teeffcurrent tax
assets against current tax liabilities and whendiferred income taxes relate to the same fisdloaity. The
offset amounts are as follows:
As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after morelthanonths 239.538 224.788
239.53¢ 22478

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred tax liabilities to be incurred after ménan 12 months (45.287) (40.953)
(45.287) (40.953)
194.251 183.835

The gross movement on the deferred income tax ag&stility) is as follows:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Beginning of the year 183.835 18.259
Income statement recovery / (charge) 15.768 125.516
Charged / (released) to equity (5.371) 19.084
Transfer of tax on distributed reserves to Curtaxt - 20.949
Other movements 19 27

End of year 194.251 183.835

Deferred tax relates to the following types of mehporary differences:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Intangible and tangible fixed assets (192.921) (149.082)
Inventory valuation 7.068 2.670
Unrealised exchange gains 20.066 -

Employee benefits provision 28.441 23.165
Provision for bad debts 16.345 (3.645)
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 12.732 16.534
Net interest cost carried forward (thin capitaliza} 46.886 42913
Net tax losses carried forward 248.678 255.648
Environmental provisions 4.575 1.405
Other temporary differences 2.381 (5.773)
End of year 194.251 183.835

Other temporary differences include differencesvarious receivable provisions as well as the piowss for
unaudited tax years. Deferred tax assets relatingx loss carry-forwards are recognised if it iskiable that
they can be offset against future taxable profts.at 31 December 2015, the Group recognised aefetarx
assets on tax loss carry-forwards totalling €248ioni (2014: €256 million) since, on the basis bétapproved
business plan, the Group considers it probabletiiese can be offset against future taxable profits

In 2014, thin capitalization rules as per art. 4%a@v 4172/2013 were applied for the first time,exmbby the net
interest expense is deductible up to a certaingmage of tax EBITDA (60% for 2014, 50% for 2015 &40%

for 2016 and onwards). This resulted in deferredassets of €47 million as at 31 December 2019&dember
2014: €43 million), which can be offset againstfettaxable profits without time constraints.
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18 Retirement benefit obligations

The table below outlines where the group’s retirehenefit amounts and activity are included infihancial
statements.

As at

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Statement of Financial Position obligations for:

Pension benefits 95.362 92.728
Liability in the Statement of Financial Position 95.362 9228
Statement of Comprehensive Income charge for:

Pension benefits 9.554 21.942
Total as per Statement of Comprehensive Income 9.554 21294
Remeasurements for:

Pension benefits (1.818) 8.327
Total as per Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (11.8) 8.327

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FinBRaisition are as follows:

As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Present value of funded obligations 16.71% 17.24:

Fair value of plan assets (7.118) (7.045)
Deficit of funded plans 9.599 10.196
Present value of unfunded obligations 85.763 82.532
Liability in the Statement of Financial Position 95362 92.728

The Group operates defined benefit pension plarGreece, Bulgaria, FYROM, Montenegro and Cyprudl A
of the plans are final salary pension plans. Thellef benefits provided depends on members’ leoditervice

and remuneration. The majority of the plans araindéd, however there are certain plans in GreegdeCgprus
that have plan assets.

The movement in the defined benefit obligation @15 and 2014 is as follows:

Present Value of Fair Value of Plan
Obligation Assets Total

As at 1 January 2014 94.328 (6.899) 87.429
Current service cost 4.567 - 4.567
Interest expense/(income) 3.538 (297) 3.241
Past service costs and (gains)/losses on settlement 14.134 - 14.134
Statement of comprehensive income charge 22.239 (297) 21.942
Remeasurements:
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts incliniéaterest
expense/(income) - 117 117
- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions .038 - 7.036
- Experience (gains)/losses 1.174 - 1.174
Statement of other comprehensive income charge 8.210 117 8.327
Benefits paid directly by the group/Contributioresgby the
group (21.873) (3.097) (24.970)
Benefit payments from the plan (3.131) 3.131 -
As at 31 December 201 99.77: (7.045 92.72¢
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Present Value of Fair Value of Plan
Obligation Assets Total
As at 1 January 2015 99.773 (7.045) 92.728
Current service cost 4.876 - 4.876
Interest expense/(income) 3.125 (160) 2.965
Past service costs and (gains)/losses on settlement 1.713 - 1.713
Statement of comprehensive income charge 9.714 (160) 9.554
Remeasurements:
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts inclinléaterest
expense/(income) - 89 89
- (Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumption 83 - 83
- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 3.719) - (3.719)
- Experience (gains)/losses 1.729 - 1.729
Statement of other comprehensive income charge (180 89 (1.818)
Exchange Differences (2) - 2)
Benefits paid directly by the group/Contributior@gby the
group (4.328) (772) (5.100)
Benefit payments from the plan (770) 770 -
As at 31 December 201 102.48( (7.118 95.36:
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted ipertsenefits is as follows:
Lessthana Between 1-Z Between 2-£
Balance at 31 December 2015 year years years Over 5 years Total
Pension Benefits 4.564 2.461 11.256 133.240 151.520
Plan assets are comprised as follows:
2015 2014
Quoted  Unquoted Total % Quoted  Unquoted Total %
Equity Instruments 1.827 - 1.827 26% 1.638 - 1.638 23%
Debt Instruments
- Government bonds 210 - 210 3% 479 - 479 7%
- Corporate bonds 2.360 - 2.360 33% 2.489 - 2.489 35%
Investment funds 1.029 - 1.029 14% 655 - 655 9%
Real Estate/ Property 1.371 - 1.371 19% 1.424 - 1.424 20%
Cash and cash equivalents - 321 321 5% - 360 360 5%
Total 6.791 321 7.11¢ 100% 6.68% 36( 7.04% 100%
The principal actuarial assumptions used were l&safs:
As at
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Discount Rate 3,50% 3,25%
Future Salary Increases 0,50% 0,50%
Inflation 0,50% 0,50%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligatianchanges in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
Increase in Decrease ir
Change in assumption assumption assumption
Discount Rate 0,5% -5,03% 5,43%
Future Salary Increases 0,5% 5,43% -5,02%
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The above sensitivity analysis is based on a chamgen assumption while holding all other assumptio
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occurdahanges in some of the assumptions may be atedelWhen
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefiligation to significant actuarial assumptions saene method
(present value of the defined benefit obligatioltalated with the projected unit credit methodret €nd of the
reporting period) has been applied as when caloglahe pension liability recognized within the tetment of

financial position.

Expected contributions to defined benefit plans tfeg following year amount to €1 million. The weigt
average duration of the defined benefit obligatoohl years.

19 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

The movement for provisions for 2015 and 2014 iHsws:

Provisions for other
liabilities and charges

At 1 January 2014 6.184
Charged / (credited) to the income statement:

- Additional provisions 170

- Unused amounts reversed (60)

- Utilized during year (70)
At 31 December 201 6.22¢
Charged / (credited) to the income statement:

- Additional provisions 219

- Utilized during year (38)
At 31 December 201 6.40¢
The majority of the amounts reported in the abategory concern provisions for Legal affairs.

20 Other long term liabilities
As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Government grants 10.792 11.664
Other Long Term Liabilities 11.882 10.197
Total 22.67¢ 21.86:

Government grants

Advances by the Government to the Group’s entitédate to property plant and equipment. Amortizatior
2015 amounted to €2,1 million (2014: €3,1 million).

Other long term liabilities

Other long term liabilities refer mainly to guarees received from petrol station dealers/ manageithe
Group’s retail companies in order to ensure thatre@t terms and conditions are met.
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21 Derivative financial instruments

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Commodity Derivative type Notional Amount Assets Liablities Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
MT'000 Bbls'000 € € MT'000 Bbls'000 € €
Commodity Swaps - 2.948 - 34.814 - 2.916 - 60.087
2.948 - 34.814 - 2.916 - 60.087
Total - 34.814 - 60.087
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Non-current portion
Commodity swaps
Current portion
Commodity swaps - 34.81¢ - 60.08’
34.81¢ - 60.08"
Total - 34.814 - 60.087

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging psegs and not as speculative investments. Howevesten
derivatives do not meet the hedging criteria, theyclassified as ‘held for trading’ for accountmgposes

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is dd®d as a nhon-current asset or liability if tleemaining maturity
of the hedged item is more than 12 months and,@srant asset or liability, if the maturity of thedged item
is less than 12 months.

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

During the year ended 31 December 2015 amountsfeaed to the statement of comprehensive income,
relating to contracts that were settled duringybar, amounted to 4548 loss, net of tax (2014: €3.586 loss,
net of tax).

The remaining cash flow hedges are highly effectind the movement in their fair value, amounting toss of
€4.802 net of tax as at 31 December 2015, (2014..7€8 loss, net of tax), is included in the hedgiegerve (see
Note 14).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgrtiate is the fair value of the derivative assethé statement
of financial position.

22 Employee costs

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 201

Wages and salaries 156.323 156.519
Social security costs 38.100 42.653
Pension costs 9.801 9.692
Other employment benefits 16.282 27.531
Total 220.506 236.395

Other employment benefits include medical insuracagering and transportation expenses. They aldode
expenses paid to employees as part of the volumtisement scheme (VRS) which are approximately €1
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million (2014: €14 million), included in “Other opeting income/(expenses) and other gains/ (loss@ite
24).

23 Exploration and Development expenses

Geological and geophysical costs are expenseccag@ud (2015: €0,5 million and 2014: €4,3 milliand relate
mainly to exploration operations in the Gulf of R#tos Lease-Area offshore Greece, in a joint ojama
between HELPE Patraikos (50%, operator), Edisoerihattional SpA (50%) and Petroceltic Resourceq\Wés
a participant for the year 2015 but transferredights to Edison & HELPE Patraikos within 2016heTLease
Agreement for the offshore area of the Gulf of &i&tys has been ratified by the Greek Parliamentharsidbeen
published in the Greek Government Gazette as LawAR®9 - Volume A, 221/03-10-14.

In 2015 exploration license costs relating to Rlataarea have been capitalized within intangilsieets (€0,4m)
and are being amortised over the term of the eafitur period.

24  Other operating income / (expenses) and other gairiglosses)
Other operating income/ (expenses) and other ddlasses) is analysed as follows:

For the year ende(
31 December 201 31 December 201

Income from Grants 2.121 3.096
Services to 3rd Parties 2.369 2.901
Rental income 11.044 12.809
Profit / (loss) from the sale of PPE - net (614) 8.93
Insurance compensation 1.357 1.243
Voluntary retirement scheme cost (1.448) (14.114)
Other operating income / (expenses) 340 574
Total other operating income / (expenses) 15.169 la5
Impairment of investment in associate (7.000) -
Other operating gains / (losses) 1.258 325
Total other operating income / (expenses) - net 9.42 10.770

Rental income relates to long term rental of pedtations, let to dealers. Other operating incorfexpenses) —
net include income or expenses which do not reétatee trading activities of the Group. Other opiaggains /

(losses) include profit from open market purchasésting to Eurobonds (Note 16). Impairment of isiveent in

associate relates to Elpedison B.V (Note 8).

25 Finance (Expenses) / Income - Net

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 201

Interest incom 8.79i 8.841
Interest expense and similar chal (209.842 (223.871
Finance costs -net (201.045) (215.030)

In addition to the finance cost shown above, anwarhof €2,3 million of finance costs (2014: €2,1limn) have
been capitalised for the year ended 31 Decembes, 2lexplained in Note 6.
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26  Currency exchange gains / (losses)

Foreign currency exchange losses of €27 milliorateelto marked-to-market losses on US$ denominated
liabilities, due to the US $ strengthening agathstEuro as of 31 December 2015, compared to thmieg of
the year (31 December 2014: €9 million).

27 Income tax expense

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 201

Current tax (9.705) (9.211)
Deferred tax (Note 17) 15.768 125.516
Total (Charge) / Credit 6.063 116.305

The corporate income tax rate of legal entitieGiaece is set at 29% for 2015 onwards (2014: 26%).

Effective for fiscal years ending 31 December 20hard, Greek companies meeting certain criteree tta be
audited on an annual basis by their statutory auditrespect of compliance with tax law. This aueads to the
issuance of a Tax Certificate which under certainditions, substitutes the full tax audit by thg &uthorities,
however the tax authorities reserve the right ¢drieitax audit. All Group companies based in Grdenee been
audited by their respective statutory auditor aadetreceived a Tax Compliance report with no figdjrfor fiscal
years up to 2014 (inclusive).

Unaudited income tax years

The unaudited income tax years of the parent cognpad its most significant subsidiaries are setb@lbw. As a
result their income tax obligations are not congddinal.

Company Name Financial years

ended
HELLENIC PETROLEUM S.A 201C
EKO SA 2008-201!
HELLENIC FUELS S.A 201C

Issuance of tax certificates for the fiscal yeat®® expected within thé2quarter of 2016.

Management believes that no additional materidilitg will arise as a result of unaudited tax ygaver and
above the tax liabilities and provisions recognisethe consolidated financial statements for teggal ended 31
December 2015.

Other Taxes

Provisional VAT audits have been completed for:

- Hellenic Petroleum S.A. for the period up to anduding December 2014,

- EKO S.A. up to and including October 2013.

Relevant audits, for subsequent periods and fardinoup companies are in progress.
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The tax (charge) / credit relating to componentstbér comprehensive income, is as follows:

For the year ended

31 December 201 31 December 201
Tax (charge)/ Tax (charge)/

Before tax credit After tax Before tax credit After tax
Available-for-sale financial assets (272) 17 (255) 375 - 375
Cash flow hedges 25.273 (5.527) 19.746 (62.866) 16.991 (45.875)
Currency translation differences (603) - (603) 185 - 185
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit pem
plans 1.818 (203) 1.615 (8.327) 2.093 (6.234)
Other comprehensive income 26.216 (5.713) 20.503 (70.633) 19.084 (51.549)

Numerical reconciliation of Group Income tax expetsprima facie tax payable:

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 2014

Profit/(Loss) before tax 38.96¢ (484.895
Tax (expense) / credit at Greek corporation teg oit29% (2014 - 26%) (11.300) 126.073
Difference in overseas tax ra 7.162 1.94¢
Tax exempt results of shipping companies 3.062 3.040
Tax on income not subject to corporate 8.48: 7.45;
Tax on expenses not deductible for tax purg (7.070 (10.045
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax los 1.93% 5.261
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax waegeiset (5.204 (1.733
Adjustments to Deferred tax due to changes inage r 13.946 -
Adjustments for current tax of prior peric (6.182 (12.622
Othel 1.23( (3.065
6.063 116.305

Tax (charge) / Credit

28 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share gtele as the effect of dilution is not material.sRaearnings
per share are calculated by dividing the net patfiibutable to equity holders of the company g weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue duhiaegériod.

For the year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Earnings per share attributable to the Company Shaeholders

(expressedin Euro per share): 0,15 (1,20)
Net income attributable to ordinary shares

(Euro in thousands) 46.684 (365.292)
Average number of ordinary shares outstanding 36383 305.635.185

29 Dividends per share

The BOD will propose no dividend out of 2015 resut the upcoming AGM. The Board did not approve a
change in dividend policy overall and will re-evatle dividend payment during 2016.
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30 Cash generated from operations

For the year ended
Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Profit before tax 38.964 (484.895)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant &

equipment and intangible assets 6,7 198.900 204.930
Amortisation of grants 20 (2.121) (3.096)
Finance costs - net 25 201.045 215.030
Share of operating profit of associates 8 (21.518) (28.245)
(Gain)/Loss from disposal of available for saleafigial
assets 6 -
Provisions for expenses & valuation charges 69.851 37.712
Foreign exchange (gains) / losses 26 26.753 9.198
Loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and eqepm 614 (3.936)
512.494 (53.302)
Changes in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (50.492) 369.439
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receiwable (73.892) 17.416
Increase / (decrease) in payables 106.249 541.979
(18.135) 928.834
Net cash generated from operating activities 494.359 875.532

31 Contingencies and litigation

The Group has contingent liabilities in respectbahk and other guarantees and other matters arisitige
ordinary course of business. They are as follows:

(a) Business issues
0] Unresolved legal claims

The Group is involved in a number of legal procagdiand has various unresolved claims pendingngrisithe
ordinary course of business. Based on currentlyilabla information and the opinion of legal counsel
management believes the final outcome will not havagnificant effect on the Group’s operating tesor
financial position, over and above provisions alseeeflected in the consolidated financial statetaen

(ii) Guarantees

The parent Company has provided letters of condad guarantees in favour of banks as securitydang
granted by them to subsidiaries and associatdso&toup, the outstanding amount of which as dd&lember
2015 was the equivalent of €1.427 million (31 Deber 2014: €1.403 million). Out of these, €1.322iam
(31 December 2014: €1.294 million) are includedansolidated borrowings of the Group and preseaseslich
in these financial statements.

(i) International operations

The Group’s international operations face a numbidegal issues related to changes in local peranid tax
regulations, however it is considered that theyndbpresent any material impact. Such cases incudispute
in connection with the local tank depots of JugogeAD in Montenegro, as well as the re-openingttod
Commission for the Protection of Competition in @yg investigation against the Petroleum companies
operating there (wholesale), for the period frorh012004 to 22/12/2006, according to which a fine€a#t
million against the Company had been imposed inl120anagement believes that no additional material
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liabilities will arise as a result of these casegroand above those recognised in the consolidétedcial
statements.

(b) Taxation and customs
0] Open tax years

Income tax audits for the Group’s most importané&xrlegal entities have been completed up to acidding

2009 with the exception of EKO where income taxitsukdave been concluded up to and including 2004lew
an audit for 2008-2010 is in progress. Furthermfrethese legal entities, provisional tax auditsimy for the

return of VAT have been concluded up to more redates for the same entities. Management estintizd¢ 0

additional material liability will arise as a resuwdf open tax years over and above the tax liaddlitand
provisions recognised in the consolidated finansiatements.

It is noted that for fiscal years ending 31 Decenthi#l1 onwards, Greek legal entities are subjeentwal tax
audits from their statutory auditors. All the red@t Group companies were audited for financial ye2011-
2014 obtaining unqualified tax audit certificates.

(ii) Assessments of customs and fines

In 2008, Customs authorities assessed additiorsibms duties and penalties amounting to approxisn&#0
million for alleged “stock shortages” during theaye 2001-2005The Company has duly filed contestations
before the Administrative Court of First Instaneed Management believes that this case will hapesitive
outcome when the court hearings take place.

However, the Customs office withheld an amount &# énillion (full payment plus surcharges) of VAT
approved refunds (see Note 11), an action agaimithwthe Company filed two Contestations before the
Administrative Courts of Athens and Piraeus. Thanidstrative Court of Athens ruled that the withdliolg
effected by the Tax Office was done against the law

The Company considers that the latter contestatiinalso be sustained by the Piraecus Court and tihe
relevant amounts will finally be recovered.

32 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

Significant contractual commitments of the Groumoant to €35 million (31 December 2014: €45
million), which mainly relate to improvements irfireng assets.

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases offices and petrol stations ¢ings and plant) under non-cancellable operatimgde
agreements.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments uhdsetnon-cancellable operating leases are as fllow

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 201

No later than 1 ye 31.50: 34.00:
Later than 1 year and no later than 5y 119.55: 110.92:
Later than 5 yea 102.88: 98.95¢
Total 253.936 243.880

(c) Letters of Credit

The Group may be requested to provide bank letérsredit to suppliers in order to obtain better
commercial and credit terms. To the extent thahstgms are already recorded as liabilities infthancial
statements there is no additional commitment taliselosed. In cases where the underlying trangactio
occurs after the year end, the Group is not liablsettle the letter of credit and hence no suahility
exists as at the year end.
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33 Related-party transactions

Included in the statement of comprehensive incomee @oceeds, costs and expenses, which arise from
transactions between the Group and related pa8igsh transactions mainly comprise of sales andhases of
goods and services in the ordinary course of basiaed are conducted under normal trading and cociehe
terms on an arm’s length basis:

Transactions have been carried out with the follmaielated parties:

a) Associates and joint ventures of the Group whiehcamsolidated under the equity method:

Athens Airport Fuel Pipeline Company S.A. (EAKAA)
Public Gas Corporation of Greece S.A. (DEPA)
Elpedison B.V.

Spata Aviation Fuel Company S.A. (SAFCO)

HELPE Thraki S.A.
Biodiesel S.A.
Superlube
D.M.E.P. HOLDCO

Sales of goods and services to related parties

For the year ende

31 December 201 31 December 201

Associates 827.339 803.826
Joint ventures 499 386

Total 827.838 804.212
Purchases of goods and services from related parsie

Associates 855.792 826.593
Joint ventures 1.184 1.555
Total 856.976 828.148
Balances due to related parties

Associates 73.348 36.088
Joint ventures 294 474

Total 73.642 36.562
Balances due from related parties

Associates 42.062 40.839
Joint ventures 101 66

Total 42.163 40.905

The parent Company has provided letters of condad guarantees in favour of banks as securitydand
granted by them to Elpedison B.V., the outstandingunt of which as at 31 December 2015 was thevalguit

of €105 million (31 December 2014: €108 million).

b) Parties which are under common control with theuprdue to the shareholding and control rights ef th

Hellenic State and have material transactions thiehGroup:

e Public Power Corporation Hellas S.A.
e Hellenic Armed Forces

e Road Transport S.A.

e Trainose S.A.
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During 2015, Group’s sales of goods and servicegot@ernment related entities amounted to €281 anilli
(2014: €359 million) and Group’s purchases of goand services to €49 million (2014: €43 million)s At
31 December 2015, the Group had a total amountfdue government related entities of €31 million

(2014: €39 million) and a total amount due to goweent related entities of €10 million (2014: €10
million).

Total receivables (trade and other) due from thee®&rstate and its related entities amount to €2@liom
(31 December 2014: € 275 million).

c) Key management includes directors (Executive and-Bxecutive Members of the board of Hellenic

Petroleum S.A.) and General Managers. The compensptid or payable to the aforementioned key
management amounted as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Short term Number of  Short term Number of
employee Termination Members/  employee Termination Members/
benefits benefits Managers benefits benefits Managers
BOD Executive Members 1.370 608 8 1.358 - 5
BOD Non Executive Members 633 445 15 325 - 9
General Managers 1.629 757 12 2.196 - 8
Total 3.632 1.81C 3.87¢ -

The above table includes benefits paid or payabMdmbers/Managers for the period that they heddsghecific
position. In instances where a Member/Manager i£eoently a BOD Member as well as a General Manage
the respective benefits are included in the formategory. The Number of Members/Managers refers to
Members/Managers who were included in one of tlevalzategories even for part of the period.
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34 Principal subsidiaries, associates and joint vent@s included in the consolidated
financial statements

EFFECTIVE

COUNTRY OF PARTICIPATION METHOD OF

COMPANY NAME ACTIVITY REGISTRATION PERCENTAGE CONSOLIDATION
EKO S.A Marketing GREECE 100,00% FULL
HELLENIC FUELS S.A. Marketing GREECE 100,00% FULL
EKOTA KO S.A. Marketing GREECE 49,00% FULL
EKO KALYPSO M.E.P.E. Marketing GREECE 100,00% FULL
EKO ATHINA MARITIME COMPANY Vessel owning GREECE 10000 FULL
EKO ARTEMIS MARITIME COMPANY Vessel owning GREECE 100% FULL
EKO DIMITRA MARITIME COMPANY Vessel ownin GREECE 100,00% FULL
EKO IRA MARITIME COMPANY Vessel owning GREECE 100,00% UEL
EKO AFRODITI MARITIME COMPANY Vessel owning GREECE 1@D% FULL
EKO BULGARIA EAD Marketing BULGARIA 100,00% FULL
EKO SERBIA AC Marketing SERBIA 100,00¥ FULL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM INTERNATIONAL S.A. Holding AUSTRIA 100,00% FULL
HELPE CYPRUS LTD Marketing UK 100,00% FULL
RAMOIL S.A. Marketing CYPRUS 100,00% FULL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM BULGARIA (HOLDINGS) LTD  Holding CPRUS 100,00% FULL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM BULGARIA PROPERTIESLTD  Marketing BULGARIA 100,00% FULL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM SERBIA (HOLDINGS) LTD Holding CcYrPBS 100,00% FULL
JUGOPETROL AL Marketing MONTENEGRC 54,35% FULL
GLOBAL ALBANIA S.A Marketing ALBANIA 99,96% FULL
ELPET BALKANIKI S.A. Holding GREECE 63,00% FULL
VARDAX S.A Pipeline GREECE 50,40% FULL
OKTA CRUDE OIL REFINERY A.D Refining FYROM 51,35% FULL
ASPROFOS S.A Engineering GREECE 100,00% FULL
DIAXON S.A. Petrochemicals GREECE 100,00% FULL
POSEIDON MARITIME COMPANY Vessel ownini GREECE 100,00¥ FULL
APOLLON MARITIME COMPANY Vessel owning GREECE 100,00% UEL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM FINANCE PLC Treasury services UK 100,00% FULL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM CONSULTING Consulting services GREE 100,00% FULL
HELLENIC PETROLEUM R.E.S S./ Energy GREECE 100,00% FULL
HELPE-LARCO ENERGIAKI SERVION S.A. Energy GREECE 51%0 FULL
HELPE-LARCO ENERGIAKI KOKKINOU S.A. Energy GREECE 50% FULL
ENERGIAKI PYLOY METHONIS S.A Energy GREECE 100,00¥ FULL
HELPE PATRAIKOS S.A. E&P of hydrocarbons GREECE 0009 FULL
HELPE UPSTREAM S.A E&P of hydrocarbons GREECE 100,00% ULIF
ELPEDISON B.V. Power Generation NETHERLANDS 50,00% EQUITY
SAFCO S.A Airplane Fuelling GREECE 33,33% EQUITY
DEPA SA. Natural Gas GREECE 35,00% EQUITY
EAKA.ASA. Pipeline GREECE 50,00% EQUITY
HELPE THRAKI S.A Pipeline GREECE 25,00% EQUITY
BIODIESEL S.A. Energy GREECE 25,00% EQUITY
SUPERLUBE LTD Lubricants CYPRUS 65,00% EQUITY
DMEP HOLDCO LTD Trade of crude/products UK 48,00% EQUITY

Subsidiaries with non- controlling interests aré material for the Group.

35 Events after the end of the reporting period

On 16 January 2016, the European Union decidedttalll economic and financial sanctions againsinlrOn

the same date, U.S and other International Resgidleasures were also partially lifted. In ligHtthe above
developments, Hellenic Petroleum and NIOC execw#tedeads of agreement on 22 January 2016 for the
recommencement of their commercial relationshiptfier supply of crude and for the settlement ofaherdue
amounts. For more information please refer to N&tderein.
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